                                                            126

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 (Recess taken).

          3                 Good afternoon, we are ready to

          4  reconvene, and it is now 1:36, and I apologize for

          5  being a little late, I tried to somewhat stay on

          6  time.  We would like to call the next panel, Mr.

          7  Newman.

          8                 MR. NEWMAN:  Tom Tevlin and John

          9  Heissenbuttel. Please raise your right hands?  Do

         10  you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you

         11  are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and

         12  nothing but the truth?

         13                 ALL:  I do.

         14                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please state your names

         15  and affiliations for your record, and begin your

         16  testimony.

         17                 MR. TEVLIN:  My name is Tom Tevlin,

         18  President of the Forest Alliance of British

         19  Columbia.

         20                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  John

         21  Heissenbuttel, Vice President for Forestry with the

         22  American Forest and Paper Association.

         23                 MR. TEVLIN:  Thanks very much, Mr.

         24  Chairman, for agreeing to hear from us, we truly

         25  appreciate it.  I have left a copy of my submission
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          2  to you, and I will just summarize it relatively

          3  quickly.  But I think there are a couple of key

          4  points that are worth making.

          5                 First of all, let me tell you that I

          6  am making this submission on behalf of three

          7  organizations:

          8                 The Forest Products Association of

          9  Canada, that is the voice of Canada' wood pulp and

         10  paper producers nationally and internationally.  Its

         11  members of about, the responsibility over about 75

         12  percent of the working force of Canada.  And by

         13  January 1st, 2007 every member of Forest Products

         14  Association of Canada will have had to submitted to

         15  an independent third- party audit under one of

         16  Forest Stewardship Council, Sustainable Forestry

         17  Initiative and Canadian Standards Associations

         18  Sustainable Forest Management Standard.

         19                 The second organization I represent

         20  today is the Canadian Wood Council.  It is the

         21  national federation of wood products manufacturers

         22  across Canada.  It represents about 90 percent of

         23  Canadian lumber production.

         24                 The Forest Alliance, my organization

         25  is a citizens' coalition governed by an elected
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          2  multi- disciplinary board supported by industry.

          3  And I always like to say that in the first paragraph

          4  of my submission so that you are aware of that.  But

          5  also supported outside of industry.

          6                 Mr. Chairman, our organization along

          7  with others, have been doing a lot of hard work on

          8  responsible procurement initiatives recently that

          9  include the three leading systems of Forest

         10  Certification.  We include in those Sustainable

         11  Forestry Initiative, Forest Stewardship Council, and

         12  the Canadian Standards Association.

         13                 Well we feel we must oppose Intro.

         14  108 today, we also feel like we are close to being

         15  in a position to support it, but there is one

         16  significant stumbling block and that is the chain

         17  of- custody issue.  We welcome New York Council's

         18  general orientation toward ensuring procurement of

         19  forest products that are derived from sustainably

         20  managed forest.  We think that is a good thing, but

         21  as we have said in the past, the issue of

         22  landownership patterns is really a significant one

         23  for you to be very aware of, and it has a real

         24  bearing on which brand of certification you will

         25  want to opt for.  And so our position is that
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          2  because there are different kinds of landownership

          3  patterns across the world, you may need to think of

          4  different kinds of sustainable forest management

          5  certification, as well.

          6                 I want to tell you, I think that

          7  there has been some progress from New York City,

          8  from this Committee of New York City Council.  I

          9  very much appreciate that.  We note that the

         10  specific reference to FSC has been dropped.

         11  Unfortunately, we think that the chain- of- custody

         12  requirement still is an obstacle.  There have been

         13  some other bits of progress that we have noted

         14  across this piece, and one of those pieces of

         15  progress has come from companies.

         16                 Last time I was here there was

         17  controversy in British Columbia known as the Great

         18  Bear Rainforest, and in the intervening time that

         19  controversy has been solved through local groups,

         20  including Green Piece, Forest Ethics, Sierra Club

         21  working with companies, and they have struck an

         22  accord called, The Joint Solutions Project.  And I

         23  think it is important to note that that accord was

         24  derived locally, not because of certification, but

         25  because of local stewardship, local engagement, and
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          2  local commitment.  And I think I just want to point

          3  out that certification is really important, but it

          4  is only one tool of a slate of tools.

          5                 There has also been progress in the

          6  wider NGO community.  I just want to quickly

          7  reference the fact that the recent Forest Leadership

          8  Forum in Atlanta, where companies and environmental

          9  groups got together and discussed these issues, was

         10  extremely useful, conciliatory and collegial.  And

         11  we think that there is some real movement in the

         12  direction of inclusion and of understanding each

         13  others systems.

         14                 At the same time, I would want to say

         15  that everyone of the systems represented at that

         16  Forest Leadership Conference, each one of the

         17  spokespeople indicated that his own system also

         18  needs work.  And I would just quote Chris Elliot who

         19  is the World Wildlife Fund leader internationally

         20  for forests based in Geneva. He, himself, said, "The

         21  Forest Stewardship Council, which was spun by World

         22  Wildlife Fund internationally, it, itself, is not a

         23  perfect system."  He said, "let's get beyond this

         24  notion of having a war among systems, and let's get

         25  focused on sustainable forest management."  I take
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          2  it from that that the best route forward is to start

          3  thinking about inclusion and about different systems

          4  for different patterns of land ownership.

          5                 Let me just very quickly touch on the

          6  two reasons why I think the chain- of- custody is a

          7  significant obstacle, and then I will stop, Mr.

          8  Chairman, if you would just indulge me one more

          9  minute.  Chair- of- custody is in its infancy.

         10  Today there is very little available certified

         11  product in the chain- of- custody pipeline.  I think

         12  we have heard that from some people earlier. What is

         13  highly available is independent, credible, third-

         14  party certified product.  What is not very available

         15  is chain- of- custody certified product.  There is a

         16  real key difference, and again I think they stem

         17  from land ownership patterns.

         18                 CSA, the Canadian Standards

         19  Association, recently launched a chain- of- custody

         20  certification option.  This is very positive, it's a

         21  very good standard.  I have not heard any of my

         22  colleagues at the Forest Stewardship Council, of

         23  which I am a member, by the way, I have not heard

         24  any of my colleagues criticize that chain- of-

         25  custody.  I think it is a credible chain- of-
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          2  custody. However, we are able to opt for a chain-

          3  of- custody in Canada because of our different land

          4  use patterns.  We have got a very small number of

          5  landowners, primarily the Crown, primarily the

          6  government, the people through the government.

          7                 In a situation in the United States

          8  where you are faced with a system of some 10 million

          9  non- industrial, private forest landowners, you have

         10  a very different situation.  A very different

         11  situation that is one that requires, I think, a

         12  different kind of certification system, and I

         13  believe that you should bear some strong

         14  consideration of that point.

         15                 That really was my ultimate point, is

         16  that I want to say land ownership patterns are

         17  extremely crucial.  However, I also want to say that

         18  at some point when you are able to craft a solution

         19  to this issue of land ownership, and I believe it is

         20  to put aside the chain- of- custody requirement, and

         21  go, as many people are going, toward an inclusive

         22  system that really looks at sustainable forest

         23  management, rather than chain- of- custody. At that

         24  point we are going to be very anxious to support the

         25  bill. And we would very much appreciate any
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          2  opportunity to assist in getting to that point.

          3                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  Thanks for the

          5  opportunity.  My name is John Heissenbuttel.  I am

          6  here representing the landowners, businesses,

          7  environmental organizations, states, counties,

          8  universities and others that participate in the

          9  Sustainably Forestry Initiative.  The SFI, as we

         10  call it, is one of the four credible, major

         11  sustainable forest management standard programs and

         12  independent certification program that is utilized

         13  in North America.  It's the SFI, the FSC, the

         14  Canadian Standards Association, and the American

         15  Tree Farm System that are the four that are broadly

         16  used.

         17                 The SFI standard and certification

         18  program is governed by an independent, multi-

         19  stakeholder organization known as the Sustainable

         20  Forestry Board, or SFB.  The SFB includes

         21  organizations like the Nature Conservancy,

         22  Conservation International, as well as

         23  representatives from the academic community,

         24  professional organizations and the business

         25  community. A list of those individuals on the
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          2  independent, multi- stakeholder SFB is attached to

          3  my testimony, I do not have to go through that.

          4                 Moreover, the SFI enjoys broad

          5  support by the environmental community, numerous

          6  states have endorsed the Sustainable Forestry

          7  Initiative, including, by the way, New York State.

          8  And we also enjoy the support of organized labor.

          9  And that is an indication that the SFI gets at,

         10  really substantively gets at some of the social

         11  issues around sustainable forestry.

         12                 We absolutely support the intent of

         13  the bill, which we believe, as you stated Mr.

         14  Chairman, was to have New York City help expand the

         15  practice of sustainable forestry through its

         16  procurement policies.  We think that is appropriate,

         17  we think that is sound, we take absolutely no

         18  exception to the City of New York trying to expand

         19  sustainable forestry and third- party certification

         20  around the world.

         21                 Unfortunately, the way the bill is

         22  constructed, rather than helping to expand the

         23  practice of sustainable forestry, it really is

         24  constructed in favor of one system, one standard,

         25  one certification program that happens to be the
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          2  Forest Stewardship Council.  Although it does not

          3  name it, it excludes the others by the very

          4  prescriptive processes and practices that is

          5  included in the legislation, or in the bill at this

          6  point in time.  And we think it can be corrected

          7  fairly simply so that it is an inclusive policy

          8  rather than an exclusive policy, because that really

          9  gets at expanding the practice of sustainable

         10  forestry.

         11                 And I have attached to my written

         12  testimony a piece that was adopted by the State of

         13  Vermont Procurement Shop that is an inclusive

         14  policy, recognizes all the four legitimate programs

         15  in North America, as well as some of the legitimate

         16  programs outside of North America.

         17                 We absolutely support an inclusive

         18  approach.  And for Council Member Stewart, the issue

         19  is not the added cost or the paper work, in my point

         20  of view.  The issue is all the landowners you have

         21  heard testify this morning participate already in

         22  the American Tree Farm System.  They do not want to

         23  go to another system, when they are already actively

         24  participating in something that works.  And the same

         25  would be for the program participants in the SFI

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            136

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  program, they would like the New York City Council

          3  to recognize all the legitimate, credible programs

          4  practiced in North America, so that there is truly

          5  competition between the certification programs,

          6  rather than a monopoly.

          7                 And I can ensure that when there is

          8  competition between those programs, it will keep the

          9  cost down for certified wood.  That is a good thing.

         10    And by the way, it also helps each one of the four

         11  programs commit to continuous improvement.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well thank you

         14  for coming. And how far did you travel today?

         15                 MR. TEVLIN:  I come from Vancouver,

         16  British Columbia on the beautiful west coast of

         17  Canada.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Wow, thanks for

         19  coming in, coming this far to testify at this

         20  hearing.

         21                 Dr. Stewart.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, thank

         23  you for coming, Sir.  You spoke about a different

         24  certification.  What are the differences, what are

         25  the differences between each of these
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          2  certifications?  You were saying that they belong to

          3  one form, what are the differences in the different

          4  certifications so that if they meet the criteria for

          5  one, are the meeting the criteria for the others?

          6                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  Okay, let begin

          7  with the key similarity.  Each one of the four

          8  programs I mentioned successfully work to expand the

          9  practice of sustainable forestry.  So the goals, the

         10  objectives, doing the right thing on the ground, all

         11  of them do.

         12                 The key differences are in the

         13  procedures to get there.  And frankly, I do not

         14  think we should be worried about the procedures, we

         15  should be worried about what happens on the ground.

         16  But procedurally, my colleague here, brought up the

         17  chain- of custody thing, that is something that the

         18  Forest Stewardship Council happens to have in their

         19  program.  And the Sustainable Forestry Initiative

         20  rather than chain- of- custody, the procurement

         21  system that a company has is subject to audit.  So

         22  it is a different approach, it gets us to the same

         23  place.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I am still

         25  not too clear. Because is the bill, I do not think
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          2  the bill is specifying which one of the

          3  certification that we should be using, is it?

          4                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  No, absolutely it

          5  does not. However, by prescribing chain- of- custody

          6  that narrows it down to a particular certification

          7  program.  The program I represent does not happen to

          8  do chain- of- custody, it utilizes a different

          9  procedure to achieve the same results.

         10                 And by the way, all the prescriptive

         11  requirements for the certification system happened

         12  to be lifted almost directly out of the Forest

         13  Stewardship Council standards, that is not good or

         14  bad.  I just would not do it that way, I would

         15  advocate more of a generic approach where you focus

         16  on programs that ensure clean water, wildlife

         17  protection, protection from wild fire.  Identify the

         18  environmental attributes you want to protect, and

         19  with competition amongst these programs, they are

         20  going to get there, and they will get there in the

         21  most efficient manner.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now the other

         24  certifications, groupings that are out there.  I

         25  think you indicated and also the Council indicated
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          2  that FSC chain- of- custody is more specific, and

          3  the other groups do not really have the chain- of-

          4  custody aspect in theirs?

          5                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  Canadian Standard

          6  Association has a chain- of- custody procedure, it

          7  is pretty simple when you operate in a country where

          8  one landowner owns 94 percent of the land, that

          9   "ain't" a tough one.  But in the US context, there

         10  are 10 million individual landowners.  And the

         11  Sustainable Forestry Initiative has, frankly, has an

         12  advantage over some of the other programs in that it

         13  was developed specifically for the United States.

         14  So we came up with a procedure that recognizes that

         15  there is 10 million landowners, and rather than

         16  chain- of- custody, the participants in our program

         17  have their procurement systems when they buy from

         18  all of these various landowners, that is all subject

         19  to an audit, a random audit, rather than tracking

         20  each individual tree.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So if you had

         22  your way, if you were an advisor to this Committee,

         23  what would you advise us to do?

         24                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  What I would

         25  advise you to do is adopt something like the State
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          2  of Vermont, an inclusive policy that recognizes each

          3  of the legitimate, credible programs out there. And

          4  point out in your bill that the goal is to third-

          5  party certify that you are protecting water quality,

          6  protecting wildlife habitat, whatever values you

          7  think are important to the citizens of New York, and

          8  let us figure out how to do it.

          9                 You know you have, at least, I know

         10  in my heart there are four credible programs out

         11  there.  Let us have at it, let us compete on equal

         12  footing against one another, and the economics and

         13  the environment will benefit.

         14                 MR. TEVLIN:  Mr. Chairman, can I just

         15  concur with that by saying that the criteria, it

         16  seems to me, should be credible, independent, third-

         17  party.

         18                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Dr. Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Based on

         21  what you just said, how can we, in the City Council,

         22  influence or make that determination when the

         23  product is coming from, let's say Vermont or some

         24  other state or someplace else?  We only have

         25  jurisdiction as to what the City does.  So we have
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          2  to make sure that they are doing what they are

          3  supposed to do, if they want to be purchasing from,

          4  selling to us.

          5                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  That is why I

          6  will underscore what Tom just said.  I believe it is

          7  correct and appropriate for this City to demand

          8  independent, third- party certification that you are

          9  adhering to a standard that achieves sustainable

         10  forest management.  You should not believe just a

         11  company that manufactures wood products that they

         12  are doing the right thing, you should insist on

         13  third- party certification.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right, all

         15  right, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Gentlemen, thank

         17  you for coming this afternoon.  We appreciate your

         18  testimony.  And if you have any other suggestions,

         19  please, submit them to us in writing.

         20                 MR. HEISSENBUTTEL:  Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. TEVLIN:  Mr. Chairman, - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes.

         24                 MR. TEVLIN: - -  may I just make one

         25  minor comment?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Sure.

          3                 MR. TEVLIN:  Thank you very much.

          4  And that is merely that there was a reference to a

          5  group certification by Forest Stewardship Council in

          6  the Providence of Ontario.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I remember

          8  that, yes.

          9                 MR. TEVLIN:  I would just point out,

         10  and I did confer with my Forest Stewardship Council

         11  colleagues, and I think it sounds like it is a bit

         12  of a grey area, so I cannot give you exact numbers.

         13  But please be aware, there is the bill to the forest

         14  landowner from the certification body, which is one

         15  expense. And that bill did not, by the way, include

         16  chain- of- custody certification, so that was a

         17  land- based bill certification, in other words

         18  invoice bill.  That did not include the chain- of

         19  custody certification, which would be an additional

         20  invoice.  And it also, I do not believe, included

         21  any of the logistical costs in terms of perhaps

         22  separating supply lines, segmenting, transportation,

         23  those kinds of things that keep products separate.

         24                 So I only want to say to you that, I

         25  do not think, I think the jury is still out on
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          2  costs.  And I think that I think it is a little bit

          3  of grey area.

          4                 Thank you, Sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well thank you

          6  for those comments.  We appreciate it, thank you

          7  very much.  Robert.

          8                 MR. NEWMAN:  Tim Keating, Forest

          9  Relief; Darron Collins from Worldwide Life

         10  Federation.  And is Marc Conserta here? No.  Then we

         11  are going to call up Tracy Hillman from the

         12  Rainforest Alliance.  I'm sorry, then Barbara

         13  Brambel, not here.  No.  Mike Rossell.  Just these

         14  two, okay, I'm sorry.

         15                 Please raise your right hands?  Do

         16  you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you

         17  are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and

         18  nothing but the truth?

         19                 ALL:  I do.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please state your names

         21  and affiliations for the record.

         22                 MR. KEATING:  My name is Tim Keating.

         23    I'm Executive Director of Rainforest Relief.

         24                 MR. COLLINS:  My name is Darron

         25  Collins.  I work for the World Wildlife Fund.
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          2                 MR. KEATING:  Thank you.  Chairman

          3  Jackson, thank you for your statements about this

          4  issue and about the bill.  I very much appreciate

          5  your sentiments this morning.  A couple of things I

          6  want, I have handed in a written testimony, I am not

          7  going to read the whole thing, I am going to try to

          8  summarize.  I would like to address a couple of

          9  points that came up earlier in some of the other

         10  testimony.

         11                 The first is that I think there is a

         12  misconception sometimes that all logging is done by

         13  local people that are residing on the land they are

         14  logging throughout the world.  And this is,

         15  unfortunately, not the case.  When you look at,

         16  especially the tropics, what you have got is mostly,

         17  the vast majority of logging is actually predatory

         18  logging.  If you look at just Brazil, as an example,

         19  Brazilian government as we have heard has admitted

         20  that 80 percent of the logging is done illegally.

         21  This logging is done by logging crews punching roads

         22  into pristine forests out further and further into

         23  the logging frontier of the Amazon Rainforest.

         24  These people have no ownership of the land, they do

         25  not belong there, they are very, very wealthy
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          2  logging companies. In fact, one person, Ahsmarf

          3  Faheda (phonetic), who is a head of one of the

          4  logging cartels in the Brazilian Amazon is reputed

          5  to make a million dollars a day in the height of

          6  logging season.  And the vast majority, perhaps, 95

          7  percent of the mahogany that a group of companies

          8  are selling has been illegally procured.

          9                 Wherever you go in the tropics,

         10  whether it is Indonesia, you see at least 70 percent

         11  of the products being exported.  The wood products

         12  are from illegal sources.  Cameroon, perhaps 95

         13  percent of the logging there is done without

         14  management plans against the lawsuit of Cameroon,

         15  over and over.  And we also see recently an increase

         16  of timber production being associated with armed

         17  conflict and even gun running, in particularly, I'm

         18  thinking right now of Liberia, where a particular

         19  purchase by the New York City Transit Authority, a

         20  recent purchase was able to be tied a Chinese

         21  Company in Liberia, the principal of which is a

         22  Dutch gentlemen, I use the term loosely, Gus van

         23  Koewenhoven, who is known by the United Nations to

         24  be involved in illegal gun running, the illegal

         25  diamond trade, and in fact, even had dealings with

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            146

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Al Qeada, the Al Qeada Network on diamond smuggling.

          3    And the profits of these timber sales are actually

          4  going for weapons purchases that are being supplied

          5  then to some of the rebels in Liberia and elsewhere

          6  to destabilize the region.

          7                 Very quickly the economic analysis, I

          8  handed in a preliminary economic analysis.  The end

          9  result of the numbers of comparing over a 100- year

         10  period, which is the life span for some of the

         11  recycled plastic lumber that I have handed up there

         12  to you. Numbers for 100,000- board- foot redecking

         13  of a boardwalk for chemically treated softwoods

         14  about $5 million in cost over that 100- year period.

         15    For tropical hardwoods about three and a quarter

         16  million dollars in cost over the 100 years for

         17  reinstallation and maintenance.  And for recycled

         18  plastic lumber roughly $825,000.  So when you look

         19  at cost over the long- term, recycled plastic lumber

         20  wins hands down.

         21                 First, one of the people that spoke

         22  just before me mentioned, I just want to correct,

         23  that the Great Bear Rainforest Initiative was an

         24  initiative of local people.  And yes there were

         25  local people involved.  But the markets campaign
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          2  that targeted Great Bear Rainforest products

          3  internationally, and including this bill that was

          4  pending in New York City Council were instrumental

          5  in moving that forest area to a victory in terms of

          6  more sustainable forestry.

          7                 And just to finish, chain- of-

          8  custody is incredibly important.  This bill does not

          9  support a rubber stamping of any industry

         10  initiatives that do not include chain- of- custody.

         11  Without chain- of- custody there is no way to know,

         12  and in fact, this is not a cherry desk.  You are

         13  sitting behind a mahogany desk that, you know, at

         14  the time it was built, and these chambers are all

         15  mahogany, crush mahogany, very, very valuable, high

         16  value mahogany, most likely from Mexico.

         17                 And the reason that Mexico is no

         18  longer a large mahogany exporter, is the old growth

         19  mahogany was logged out.  The Ejido that was

         20  represented today, these folks took back the land,

         21  basically, from former rapacious loggers that had

         22  logged out all the valuable woods for things, like

         23  this City Council

         24  Chambers.  And you know, we went ahead years ago and

         25  logged out the mahogany, now New York City is
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          2  responsible for helping logging out the ekki and the

          3  izobe (phonetic), the greenheart, and some of the

          4  other woods, the ipe, which are used in heavy

          5  construction here, and this bill would address that.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. COLLINS:  Good afternoon.  My

          8  name is Darron Collins.  I work for the World

          9  Wildlife Fund.  I am their Regional Forest

         10  Coordinator for the Latin American and Caribbean

         11  Secretariat.  And I would like to first thank you

         12  all.  I feel proud to be a part of this process,

         13  because it is monumental.

         14                 With respect to the proposed

         15  legislation, the City of New York has the

         16  opportunity, and this a word that Councilwoman

         17  Clarke used before, it is an opportunity to

         18  establish a procurement policy that would ultimately

         19  improve the ecological integrity of the world's

         20  forests, and improve the livelihood of the people of

         21  those forests.  World Wildlife Fund sees the

         22  legislation proposed by the City as insightful,

         23  forward- thinking, and catalyzing.

         24                 One critical component of the WWF

         25  Forest Program is sustainable forest management
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          2  through the process of Forest Certification.  We

          3  recognize that wood and forest products will and

          4  will continue to be used, and are globally important

          5  resources. Forest Certification is a mechanism where

          6  we can ensure that our purchases, whether they be of

          7  individuals, retailers or cities come from

          8  sustainable sources.  And although as someone

          9  previously mentioned, we have come a long way in

         10  terms of working with other certification systems,

         11  the Forest Stewardship Council is currently the only

         12  available Forest Certification system that

         13  recognizes the importance of the ecological, social

         14  and economic components of sustainable forest

         15  management.

         16                 WWF has a long- standing commitment

         17  to the principles and criteria of the FSC, that is

         18  those benchmarks against which sustainability is

         19  defined.  And these principles and criteria are

         20  unique on several accounts:

         21                 1.  They ensure the widest range of

         22  stakeholders are involved.

         23                 2.  They ensure the rights of local

         24  indigenous people are taken into consideration.

         25                 3.  They ensure that forest industry

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            150

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  workers are protected and compensated appropriately.

          3                 4.  They ensure that the benefits of

          4  the forest harvest are distributed judiciously.

          5                 5.  They ensure that each component

          6  along the entire product chain from the forest to

          7  the store aisle observe these ecological, social,

          8  and economic criteria.

          9                 And one other thing that I just

         10  wanted to add is that the principles and criteria of

         11  the FSC are really the only of global scope.  And

         12  when we are talking about the purchases of New York

         13  City, it is vital that we include this global scope.

         14                 Just, I have a few minutes left.  I

         15  think gone are the days where conservation is just a

         16  metaphor for establishing national parks, because in

         17  this day work with communities is really, really

         18  important and work with natural resource management

         19  in a way that improves the human ecological

         20  integrity of the planet is first and foremost on the

         21  agenda.

         22                 Also gone are the days where the

         23  private sector was considered apart from or an

         24  opposition to the goals of conservation.  Because

         25  the private sector now and the laws that influence
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          2  the private sector play an enormously important role

          3  in conservation.

          4                 Many of the wood products that give

          5  the City its character and its form, from simple

          6  park benches to the most stately City Courthouses,

          7  make use of this high- quality tropical hardwoods.

          8  And there is a good reason for that, it is a

          9  beautiful material and it's certainly very

         10  structurally sound.  However, the purchase of these

         11  tropical hardwoods does, has a measurable impact on

         12  the world's tropical forests and the tropical forest

         13  communities.

         14                 This legislation effectively ensures

         15  that the impact is positive and not negative.  And

         16  such a large and visual consumer like the City of

         17  New York has an additional responsibility because it

         18  is such a standard setter.  Establishing a purchase

         19  preference for FSC certified wood is a huge advance

         20  for forest conservation, both in terms of the volume

         21  of wood the City consumes, and in terms of the

         22  influence that are sure to be felt across the

         23  country.

         24                 Again, I really commend the

         25  legislation proposed by the City Council, and I look
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          2  forward to working with you in the future.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well thank you

          5  for testifying. Any questions?

          6                 I would like to, on behalf of the

          7  Committee and the City Council, thank Tom Keating,

          8  Tim, I'm sorry, for your pioneering work in this

          9  particular matter.  And for those who are not aware,

         10  he has been spearheaded this effort to have the City

         11  act on the, as a responsible party in the wood

         12  procurement process.  So Tim, we in the City of New

         13  York and in the City Council thank you for your

         14  activity on behalf of the citizens of this great

         15  city, and for the people that will be impacted

         16  regarding this proposed legislation.  Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 MR. KEATING:  Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you very

         21  much for testifying.

         22                 MR. NEWMAN:  The next panel will be

         23  Joe Murray and John Kossler.  John Kossler?

         24                 Please raise your right hand?  Do you

         25  solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are
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          2  about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and

          3  nothing but the truth?

          4                 MR. MURRAY:  I do.

          5                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please state your name

          6  and affiliation for the record.

          7                 MR. MURRAY:  My name is Joseph

          8  Murray.  I am the owner of Forest For Tomorrow, we

          9  are a small lumber company, timber company located

         10  out on Long Island.

         11                 I am here today, I am going to make

         12  three brief points in the interest of time.

         13                 First, my company operates in the

         14  entire New York, Metropolitan area, and including on

         15  occasion garnering timber and logs from the City of

         16  New York.  So essentially, I am the home boy here.

         17                 I have heard each of the proponents

         18  testify today on the issue of tropical woods.  In my

         19  opinion, this bill is not about tropical woods,

         20  because there are already state and city laws which

         21  regulates the procurement of tropical woods and the

         22  purchasing.

         23                 Second, it is interesting that the

         24  environmentalists who are out here advocating

         25  environmental responsibility and recycling, reject

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            154

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  the largest and fastest growing recyclable supply of

          3  available timber in the United States.  And that

          4  timber is timber which is garnered from suburban

          5  locations, in essence, suburban sprawl timber, the

          6  natural growth of the population.  They oppose

          7  utilization of timber which is garnered from this

          8  sector. Most of this wood is obtained with local

          9  permit and permission through building permits in

         10  the local towns.

         11                 Right now in many states, and

         12  particularly here in New England, the amount of

         13  lumber which is taken, which is available through

         14  suburban sprawl or land clearers, excavators, tree

         15  companies and the like, exceeds all the timber which

         16  is cut by the forest companies.

         17                 The aspect that I am here before this

         18  Council here today is the definition.  I have

         19  provided definitions for you in the paper work that

         20  I have provided.  The definition is somewhat

         21  interesting.  The environmentalists who reject, the

         22  FSC program is the only environmental program which

         23  rejects recycling of this timber.  All the other

         24  programs advocated by the forest industries, except

         25  recycling and encourage it.  Which is why I am here
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          2  on their behalf today.

          3                 One other point that I might make is

          4  that the definition, which I have proposed to you,

          5  which includes all these logs garnered from local

          6  areas and are unable to provide a chain of- custody

          7  provision are with the approval of local government.

          8  They come from residential land clearings.

          9                 The legislation, as I read it, would

         10  penalize everyone who works in the entire New York,

         11  Metropolitan area who would like to bid on a City

         12  contract.  This encompasses virtually everybody in

         13  New York, Long Island, and including the City of New

         14  York who happen to garner wood from local sources.

         15  This includes the voters of the City of New York.

         16                 The suburban sprawl issue is really

         17  the fundamental issue, which is, - -  I should say

         18  is a fundamental environmental forestry issue of the

         19  next generation.  Urbanization was surpassed

         20  agriculture as the primary cause of loss of forest

         21  land 1984. Timberland owned by the forest industry

         22  declined between 1989 and 1999, and the forest

         23  industry and environmentalists concur that the most

         24  perilous threat to remaining forest land is suburban

         25  sprawl.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  You

          4  traveled in from where, Suffolk County?

          5                 MR. MURRAY:  Yes, I did.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  What

          7  town is your company located in?

          8                 MR. MURRAY:  Huntington.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Huntington.

         10  Okay.  Basically, your company then takes all of the

         11  woods that come from a contractor, let's say

         12  clearing land in order to build homes and other

         13  things like that?

         14                 MR. MURRAY:  Exactly.  There is an

         15  article there that I included in your packet which

         16  was in the New York Times.  It represents what we

         17  do, and was extremely well received.  In fact, my

         18  company received a nomination for entrepreneur of

         19  the year, last year, and the year 2001.  We were the

         20  first forest company in the United States to ever be

         21  nominated for this award.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is my

         23  understanding, and maybe you can correct me if I am

         24  wrong, that this bill would exempt that situation.

         25  Isn't that correct?  So you would be protected under
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          2  this bill?

          3                 MR. MURRAY:  Not under its, not under

          4  the way it is currently written.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  No?

          6                 MR. MURRAY:  No, it is not.  I have

          7  reviewed all the- -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is that your

          9  opinion on it, or- -

         10                 MR. MURRAY:  No, it is not my

         11  opinion, that is confirmed by Smart Wood, by FSC.

         12  In fact, I have with me my copy of their definitions

         13  and it definitely is not inclusive, that is why it

         14  is very important that my definition be included.

         15                 Also the definition matches the

         16  definition that is put out by SCS, which is

         17  Scientific Certification System.  A recognized

         18  auditor and authority by FSC, itself.  So FSC does

         19  not even recognize the preferred wood sources of its

         20  own auditing bodies.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  All

         22  right, and you have submitted that all in your

         23  packet?

         24                 MR. MURRAY:  Yes, I have.  One other

         25  note, if I possibly may?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Sure, go ahead.

          3                 MR. MURRAY:  Included in the packet

          4  is an article which was also in the New York Times,

          5  which shows that many of the local, well, in my

          6  particular case, Suffolk County has proposed

          7  Forestry Council.  The object of the local

          8  initiatives are to promote recycling.  One of the

          9  ways we promote it is by selling it rather than it

         10  ending up in landfills where it will waste as rot or

         11  some other uses.

         12                 So the sale of timber is very

         13  important, environmentally.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you for

         15  coming to testify all the way in from Long Island,

         16  we appreciate it.

         17                 MR. MURRAY:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 MR. NEWMAN:  Asher Kupta (phonetic),

         21  NRDC.  I'm sorry, who is ready now to testify?

         22  Everybody else is finished? What is your name?

         23  Right, I have got you, there is a rhyme and method

         24  to this.  So we are finished?  We are done, okay,

         25  great.  So then it is going to Frank Sheridan, Audry
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          2  Troise and Brigid Shea.

          3                 Please raise your right hands?  Do

          4  you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you

          5  are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and

          6  nothing but the truth?

          7                 ALL:  I do.

          8                 MR. NEWMAN:  Please state your names

          9  and affiliations for the record.

         10                 MS. SHEA:  My name is Brigid Shea.  I

         11  am with the International Wood Products Association.

         12    We are a trade association representing both

         13  domestic and overseas companies that deal with wood

         14  and wood products.

         15                 I am here today to testify in

         16  opposition of this bill as it is drafted on behalf

         17  of our membership.  It is our position that the

         18  adoption of Intro. 108 would be counterproductive

         19  rather than helpful towards achieving sustainable

         20  forest management in developing countries.  In our

         21  situation the cost is the problem.

         22                 Such a policy would only serve to

         23  pick winners and losers, the latter being developing

         24  countries that are not yet able to make those

         25  certifications standards set forth in this bill.
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          2  Certification is a lengthy, complicated and

          3  expensive process.  If developing countries cannot

          4  afford to find markets for their products, they will

          5  never be able to put in place the resources, the

          6  practices necessary to apply for certification.

          7                 Certifying tropical forest is equally

          8  challenging to the certifiers as indicated by the

          9  fact that more than half of a certified forests are

         10  located in Europe, and almost 40 percent in North

         11  America.  Developing countries account for no more

         12  than 8 percent of the total.  As a whole, less than

         13  3 percent of the world's forest areas are presently

         14  certified.

         15                 According to an analysis by the

         16  International Tropical Timber Organization, it

         17  appears that certification schemes have not been

         18  designed in a way which could allow developing

         19  countries to make fast progress in the field.  As a

         20  market promotion tool, certification has been

         21  clearly more important for the developed than

         22  developing countries.

         23                 One of the major barriers to

         24  certifying tropical forests in addition to the

         25  financial costs are inflexible standards of
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          2  performance.  Tropical forests are disadvantaged

          3  because certification standards tend to focus on the

          4  end results rather than sustainable forestry

          5  management practices.  Certifications standards do

          6  not recognize successive steps to go through in

          7  moving towards sustainable forestry management.

          8  Certification is not able to address the root causes

          9  of deforestation  It often fails to take into

         10  account other land use issues such as development of

         11  agriculture, which can have a significant impact on

         12  forests.

         13                 Certification standards are sometimes

         14  in conflict with national laws.  What may be

         15  considered illegal based on public law, or

         16  unacceptable for volunteer certification standards

         17  may still be part of customary law and traditional

         18  rights of local people living in and around forests.

         19                 These are some of the constraints

         20  that forest certification systems such as the FSC

         21  must address before certification can work in

         22  developing countries.  In my written testimony I

         23  provide examples of good sustainable forestry

         24  programs that are in progress in developing nations.

         25    I urge members of this Committee to read these
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          2  success stories and contribute to the future

          3  successes by rejecting this legislation in its

          4  current form.

          5                 New York City prides itself in its

          6  open door policy to people of other nations.  IWPA

          7  urges that the City Council not shut the door on

          8  products from these nations, because they provide a

          9  life- line of foreign capital to reinvest in their

         10  forests, families and futures.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MS. TROISE:  Thank you.  I am Audrey

         13  Troise, owner of a small New York City business, who

         14  wears three hats.  Since 1957 I have sold the City

         15  both domestic and imported species from the

         16  Cameroons in Africa, from Guyana, and from some

         17  other South American countries.  I also represent

         18  Polywood, a recycled product.

         19                 I think that the City Council needs

         20  to be aware of how unscrupulous some people are in

         21  trying to get the FSC passed by this City Council.

         22  There was an article, and Mr. Keating has repeated

         23  this here, stating that, "the tropical hardwood that

         24  the City Transit Authority recently used to rebuild

         25  part of the subway system was forested from rare
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          2  African jungles and supports illegal arms

          3  trafficking, and can be connected to Al Qeada."  I

          4  am so upset by this, Mr. Jackson, that you cannot

          5  understand.  I started work when I was 16- years-

          6  old, I am an American, I am proud of being an

          7  American, and for anyone to give this inference in a

          8  newspaper or in front of this panel makes me sick.

          9                 First of all, ekki, which comes from

         10  the Cameroons is not on the State list of material

         11  that is banned.  It is used by the Transit

         12  Authority, not only because it will last more than

         13  50 years, but because it is naturally fire resistant

         14  and they are protecting the people of the City of

         15  New York against a fire down in the subways.

         16                 We can absolutely prove to this

         17  Council, and I would very much like a meeting with

         18  the members of the Council, that any ties we sold to

         19  New York City did not originate in Liberia, they

         20  have no connection with anyone from Liberia, I do

         21  not even know the name of the gentleman that Mr.

         22  Keating mentioned in his testimony, and we believe

         23  the City Council should not associate themselves

         24  with people who would stoop so low as to put an

         25  article like this in the paper.  The ramifications
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          2  to our company and to this City are enormous.

          3                 I have discussed this matter with my

          4  attorney, and Mr. Keating and this newspaper will be

          5  getting a letter from them.

          6                 The material that comes from the

          7  Cameroons, where the World Bank and the World

          8  Wildlife Fund has worked with the government to set

          9  aside very large amounts of land in lieu of the FSC

         10  Certification, the World Bank has hired global

         11  witness to monitor the way the mills harvest wood

         12  out of the areas that are being harvested, and it is

         13  very, very strictly controlled out of the Cameroons.

         14                 The whole article in this paper is a

         15  fabrication, and his statement is a fabrication.  I

         16  just do not know what else to say, I am so upset

         17  about this, to be truthful with you.  I have worked

         18  in this City and sold the City for all of these

         19  years, I have a reputation for honesty, even my

         20  competitors want to buy my business when I retire

         21  because I have the best reputation of any of the

         22  people that have sold to the City of New York.  And

         23  for anyone to print this garbage, or to put this out

         24  as testimony, just upsets me beyond belief.  I do

         25  not know how to tell you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  I'm

          3  sorry, go ahead, Sir.  Just trying, some logistics

          4  we are trying to take car of.

          5                 MR. SHERIDAN:  I represent myself.  I

          6  am in the wood business, but I was born and bred in

          7  the Bronx, and I have lived in Bayside, Queens for

          8  the last 20 years.  I am proud to be a New Yorker,

          9  up to now.

         10                 My concern about this legislation is

         11  both economic as a resident of this City, and

         12  pragmatic as probably the most expert person on the

         13  subject in this City.  I have appeared before this

         14  Council twice before, and to suggest to the

         15  Councilman, now Speaker Miller, many sources of

         16  information that are non- biased and official where

         17  he could find out the real story of what he is

         18  dealing with.  He has elected not to do this.  This

         19  City ignored the forum on Forests at the UN, they

         20  ignored getting the details of those forums, which

         21  address the subject that you are talking about here.

         22    I resent this, yet, I heard the rhetoric here,

         23  none of which you are going to check, which I

         24  resent.  You are an exploratory thing.

         25                 You asked the question about
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          2  compliance within 90 days.  Are you aware that this

          3  legislation excludes Black Africa? Because there is

          4  not one operating system that can comply with the

          5  FSC outlined system you have here, it's non-

          6  operational in all of Africa.  New York City might

          7  as well hang out a sign, Africans need not apply.

          8  Not 90 days, maybe nine years they can get in line.

          9  But are you going to provide them help to do it?

         10                 And as far as your cost structure, if

         11  you do not know how much this is going to cost me as

         12  a taxpayer, you best find out.  Ask your

         13  Comptroller, they will tell.  We cannot go ahead on

         14  this in the wrong way.  We have got to go ahead as

         15  responsible people.

         16                 The United Nations, the International

         17  Tropical Timber Organization, the Food and

         18  Agricultural Organizations, USAID, all have called

         19  for multi- acceptance of various systems. Yet, this

         20  bill outlines one system, actually I will not call

         21  this system, I will call it a scheme, because I know

         22  this system and I know where the bodies are buried.

         23                 I can fault in this system.  This is

         24  not a UL label, this is not a consumer union

         25  approval.  This is a faulty system, but many of them
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          2  are faulty.  This is not the second coming.

          3                 So give the rest of the systems a

          4  chance and we can make progress in the tropical

          5  forests.  And to that end, if we have money to spend

          6  in this City, let's spend it where it belongs, let's

          7  spend it on those who protect us, not only in 9/11,

          8  but every day. Let's spend it in our education.

          9  Those who protect us, presently, are our uniformed

         10  services.  But our education, our schools, are our

         11  children, and they will protect us in the future.

         12  So let's spend the money where it belongs.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  Let

         14  me just ask a question, you are saying that,

         15  considering, - -  Were you here from the beginning

         16  when I read my opening statement and all of that

         17  stuff?

         18                 MR. SHERIDAN:  Yes, Sir, I have been

         19  here three times.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Three times,

         21  and this is my first time, here.

         22                 MR. SHERIDAN:  Right, Sir.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I know.  In

         24  order for us to move forward with this bill or an

         25  amendment to this bill, have you made any
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          2  suggestions that would make it more suitable to, by

          3  your approval as an expert in the field?

          4                 MR. SHERIDAN:  I have made them to

          5  the Council, the Council has chosen to ignore them.

          6  You can go up to the UN get the reports from the

          7  forum of Forest, which can give you a good picture

          8  of it as far as comparative assistance.  There are

          9  documents out there that compare the various

         10  certification systems.  But evidently, the Council

         11  has not accessed them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What about the

         13  chain- of custody issue?  I mean, because that is

         14  what I - -

         15                 MR. SHERIDAN:  I will exemplify that

         16  one for you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Go ahead.

         18                 MR. SHERIDAN:  You have a furniture

         19  company making desks for your school.  They buy

         20  various types of plywood, which are made from

         21  various types of veneer that comes from various

         22  countries throughout the world.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         24                 MR. SHERIDAN:  Tell me how they are

         25  going to do it? If you can show a furniture company
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          2  how to maintain chain- of custody on all those

          3  various species, and still maintain a production

          4  schedule, when one comes late, I will go along with

          5  it. But you cannot do it, we have tried.

          6                 This subject is far beyond New York

          7  City.  New York City should be lauded on its intent,

          8  but we know where an unguided road with good

          9  intentions leads.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  But in order to

         11  try to, if we are going to use our purchasing power

         12  to try to influence change, it has to start

         13  somewhere, you would agree with that?

         14                 MR. SHERIDAN:  Right.  And has to try

         15  to do the most good for the most people.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         17                 MR. SHERIDAN:  That is a pragmatic

         18  approach.  And if you broaden this to other systems,

         19  you will see change, and you will give some

         20  countries, the Country of Ghana has got one of the

         21  best forest management systems in the world.  But it

         22  is not FSC certified, and it will not be.  Because

         23  it has its own system.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  But if, in

         25  fact, let's assume that New York City was buying $10
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          2  billion of wood, and let's assume that Ghana was

          3  supplying $3 billion over the past 10 years.

          4                 MR. SHERIDAN:  Right, Sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And if they

          6  knew we were moving towards this, and if they wanted

          7  to sell their wood to us, and that is the

          8  requirement, let's say that was passed by law, well,

          9  from just a layperson's point of view, and I am not

         10  an expert like you, I know from what I have read and

         11  what I have been told, and if I am Ghana, then I am

         12  going to move towards the certification in order to

         13  sell my products.  Would you agree with that?

         14                 MR. SHERIDAN:  I totally disagree.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You would

         16  totally disagree with that?

         17                 MR. SHERIDAN:  Not if it costs me

         18  money.  Not only will you lose Ghana as a supplier,

         19  you will lose the influence that you have in Ghana

         20  now.  And that next big sucking sound you hear will

         21  be China swallowing the tropical forest, including

         22  Ghana.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, now,

         24  okay.

         25                 MR. SHERIDAN:  They can go in that
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          2  direction, they do not need you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well that is,

          4  okay.  All right, well I appreciate your response.

          5  And I am, as I have said to you, I am leaning

          6  towards passing the bill, but I am open, I want to

          7  hear.  And that is why these hearings are being

          8  held, and that is why, if you have noticed, and you

          9  have sat here during the hearings, I have not rushed

         10  any particular panel and I have explored the

         11  options.  And I am going to, I just want to ask our

         12  resident, this woman here, what is your name, again,

         13  I'm sorry?

         14                 MS. TROISE:  Audrey Troise.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Audrey, I want

         16  to ask you a question.  And you mentioned that this

         17  bill does not get to the root of deforestation.  And

         18  what, in your opinion, is the root cause of

         19  deforestation?  Because I have an opinion in my

         20  mind, I just want to know, what in your opinion is

         21  the root cause of deforestation?

         22                 MS. TROISE:  Okay, I have traveled in

         23  the United States and I have traveled in other

         24  countries, being in this business for many, many

         25  years.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

          3                 MS. TROISE:  I believe that the root

          4  cause of deforestation is clear cutting, which is

          5  not done in most of the tropical countries.  And I

          6  also believe that it is where the lumber has no

          7  value, that is cut down to make homes, per mining,

          8  for other industry.  But as long as the lumber has a

          9  value, they will continue to cut down and sell their

         10  lumber and nurture their trees for the future.

         11                 I have traveled extensively in

         12  Guyana, and there was a gentleman here from Barama

         13  in Guyana.  Guyana has not done a lot of

         14  forestation, and what they have done is sustainable.

         15    They cut very little of their trees.  But a

         16  company like Barama, which is a very large company

         17  with a lot of money, can go ahead and get FSC

         18  Certification.  The smaller companies cannot, they

         19  cannot afford it.  And I think that in some ways

         20  that is going to be reverse psychology for you,

         21  because a company like Barama has the wherewithal to

         22  come in and cut down a lot of the forest that they

         23  are not cutting down, simply because they are not

         24  selling their product now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Did you
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          2  want to comment, I'm sorry.  Okay, well, I

          3  appreciate the opportunity for you, for all you

          4  coming into testify at this hearing.  And this issue

          5  has not been decided yet.  So if you have any

          6  additional information, please submit it to us, and

          7  I appreciate you coming in and sharing your opinions

          8  and thoughts on this subject.

          9                 MS. TROISE:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you very

         11  much.  At this point in time, this meeting is

         12  adjourned.  Thank you.

         13                 (Hearing adjourned at 2:45 p.m.)

         14                 (The following testimony was read

         15  into the record.)

         16

         17  Testimony of:

         18  Rodney M. Jones, ACF, SAF, Certified Forester

         19  American Tree Farm System

         20

         21                 I am a forester for many New York

         22  City residents who own several thousand acres of

         23  forest land in the New York City Watersheds.  I am a

         24  Society of American Foresters' Certified Forester, a

         25  member of the Association of Consulting Foresters, a
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          2  Certified Inspecting Forester for the American Tree

          3  Farm System. I am a New York City Watershed forest

          4  landowner, I have a New York City Watershed Forest

          5  Management Plan on my property, and I am a Certified

          6  Tree Farmer.

          7                 Regarding your proposal to only

          8  purchase Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) Forest

          9  Products, I find it interesting that New York City

         10  has put millions of dollars into a program enhancing

         11  the quality of their watershed by encouraging

         12  landowners to practice good forest management, and

         13  then New York City would not be interested in

         14  purchasing the forest products grown on properties

         15  in their own watershed.

         16                 You will take our water but not buy

         17  our wood?  Why? It may be that you do not realize

         18  that if you sign this proposal, you will not be able

         19  to purchase the forest products grown in your

         20  watershed.

         21                 Further, the FSC proposal will put

         22  added pressure on some forest landowners who can not

         23  pay the added expenses to become FSC Certified, to

         24  subdivide their property, since they will feel that

         25  practicing good forest management is not a viable
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          2  alternative within the New York City watershed.

          3                 Programs that New York City currently

          4  supports: Certified Tree Farms, New York State

          5  Forest Tax Law 480- a Certifications, and your own

          6  private New York City Watershed Forest Management

          7  Properties, will not be acceptable forest products

          8  producing properties ever.  New York City landowners

          9  will be selling their watershed wood to one less

         10  buyer.

         11                 There are several outstanding

         12  nationally recognized forest products certification

         13  programs that would not be acceptable producers of

         14  forest products for you under this proposal.

         15                 I would support your decision to sign

         16  a proposal to only purchase forest products from

         17  properties that practice good forest management, but

         18  FSC is not the only certifier of good forest

         19  management.

         20                 Someone will be glad to buy my New

         21  York City watershed wood, but if you sign on with

         22  FSC, it will not be New York City.

         23

         24  Testimony of:

         25  Francis X. McArdle
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          2  GCA Managing Director

          3  The General Contractors Association of New York,

          4  Inc.

          5

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  comment on this proposed legislation.

          8                 While the Association stands behind

          9  the principles enunciated in Intro. 108- A, we

         10  believe that the bill as drafted does not provide

         11  the most effective wood management program for the

         12  City of New York.  The Association is particularly

         13  concerned that the legislation does not effectively

         14  address the needs and issues of ecologically sound

         15  silviculture in New York State.  The Association

         16  believes that it is in the best interest of the City

         17  of New York to support and sponsor the development

         18  of a sustainable forestry economy in the State of

         19  New York.  Doing so is good for all the New Yorkers

         20  who are currently involved in New York State's

         21  forest products industry.  The health of the New

         22  York State forest products industry is particularly

         23  important to the upstate communities of New York.

         24                 A program that addresses the needs of

         25  the New York State silviculture industry is
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          2  particularly good for the City of New York.  We have

          3  a very direct interest in maintaining a Catskills

          4  economy that is both economically and ecologically

          5  supportive of the New York City reservoir system.

          6  The City of New York will have to spend billions, if

          7  there is significant deterioration in the water that

          8  runs off in the Catskill and Delaware watershed into

          9  our reservoirs.  We can avoid that investment in

         10  large part by maintaining economically healthy and

         11  environmentally sensitive farming and silviculture

         12  in our watersheds.  The ecologically sound use of

         13  the land will help to reduce adverse runoff and

         14  reduce the conversion of land into asphalted and

         15  concrete surfaces.  Any legislation that the City

         16  Council adopts on wood should always ensure that

         17  wood harvested on an ecologically sound basis from

         18  within our watershed and within our state has a

         19  pride of place in our purchasing practices.

         20                 The legislation before the Council

         21  today was first drafted to focus our attention on

         22  the values of prudent and sustainable tropical

         23  silviculture.  Now it has been extended to cover all

         24  silviculture that produces woods used in New York

         25  City products.  Unfortunately, and regrettably, it
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          2  sets standards for certification programs that may

          3  be unattainable by any of the current sustainable

          4  forest certification programs.

          5                 The legislation before the Council

          6  would require that any certification program

          7  considered by the city have "an organizational

          8  structure consisting of a balanced membership of

          9  environmental, social, and economic interests that

         10  democratically governs the operation of the

         11  program.." And "certification standards which...have

         12  been developed and approved through an open,

         13  democratic process involving an equitable

         14  representation of environmental, social and economic

         15  interests, and which ensure...that forest management

         16  areas are protected from...settlement..(and)

         17  recognition of and respect of the traditional and

         18  customary rights of indigenous peoples to own, use

         19  and manage their territories and resources."  This

         20  requirement is not operational in nature and will be

         21  left to the courts to interpret.  To the best of my

         22  knowledge, none of the existing forest certification

         23  programs addresses in any way the elements that the

         24  drafting wants considered.  For example, none of the

         25  certification programs explicitly addresses the
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          2  rights of local governments in New York State to

          3  provide for land use planning and land use changes.

          4  None of the programs have mechanisms to incorporate

          5  the decisions on forest products standards that are

          6  made by the State of New York.  None of the existing

          7  programs could qualify as reflecting a balance of

          8  New York State environmental, social, and economic

          9  interests.  The City Council must always remember

         10  that the City is legally a creature of the State of

         11  New York and must always incorporate the appropriate

         12  respect for the laws of the State of New York in

         13  whatever it does.  The Council should develop a more

         14  operational definition of qualified certification

         15  programs before it passes the legislation.  The

         16  failure to do so will leave the City open to costly

         17  court challenges under NAFTA and New York State

         18  legal proceedings.

         19                 The principles of rewarding

         20  ecologically sound forestry programs are noble ones.

         21    The City Council should step back and drafting

         22  legislation that encourages, rather than negates,

         23  New York State's efforts in this area.

         24

         25  Testimony of:
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          2  Edward Daly

          3  Forest Policy Director

          4  Consumer's Choice Council

          5

          6                 My name is Ned Daly and I am the

          7  Forest Policy Director with the Consumer's Choice

          8  Council.  The Council is a coalition of 65

          9  environmental, labor, human rights organizations and

         10  businesses concerned with developing consumer

         11  information, product certification and labeling.  We

         12  work on a number of commodities including organic

         13  food, shade- grown coffee, sustainably managed fish,

         14  child- labor free textiles and of course wood

         15  products.

         16                 The legislation which we are

         17  discussing today represents an important step for

         18  our society toward a more sustainable economy.  In

         19  town meetings and hearings not that different from

         20  this one, local governments have played a crucial

         21  role in developing some of the most important

         22  advance for citizens of the U.S. And of the world.

         23  In the journeys to end apartheid in South Africa, to

         24  create living wage standards in the U.S., to develop

         25  markets for recycled products and to free the
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          2  colonies from the yoke of England, the first steps

          3  were taken by committees like this one.

          4                 Bill No. 108, like recent anti-

          5  sweatshop initiatives, uses markets, and the role

          6  large consumers play in them, to promote products

          7  and values that benefit our society. This selective

          8  purchasing legislation would allow New York City to

          9  protect and promote forest conservation and good

         10  labor practices throughout the world.

         11                 Increasingly, regulations meant to

         12  protect jobs, health and the environment are viewed

         13  as "non- tariff barriers to trade."  Consumers are

         14  losing the filters that traditionally kept out the

         15  most egregiously produced products.  The consumer,

         16  institutionalized or individual, becomes more

         17  responsible and hence more culpable for consumption

         18  of unsustainable products.  Through its procurement,

         19  New York City can either be part of the problem by

         20  continuing to buy unsustainable wood products, or

         21  part of the solution by ensuring environmental and

         22  labor standards are respected in the production of

         23  the timber products it procures.

         24                 The social and environmental problems

         25  associated with unsustainable timber harvesting are
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          2  far- reaching and varied. Child and forced labor,

          3  illegal logging, abuse of indigenous land rights,

          4  ecosystem destruction, and unsafe working conditions

          5  are not uncommon in timber harvesting throughout the

          6  world.

          7                 Of course, many timber companies

          8  operate in a socially and environmentally

          9  sustainable manner.  The difficulty for consumers,

         10  both industrial and individual, has been how to

         11  distinguish the good from the bad.  Consumers can

         12  now look for products certified as sustainably

         13  produced by the Forest Stewardship Council, (FSC).

         14  The FSC is a nonprofit, independent, third- party

         15  certification body whose goal is to promote

         16  environmentally responsible, socially beneficial,

         17  and economically viable management of the world's

         18  forests, by establishing an international standard

         19  of recognized and respected Principles of Forest

         20  Stewardship.  The FSC is the most recognized

         21  standard for wood products worldwide, and is now

         22  being used by companies like Home Depot and Anderson

         23  Windows to green their supply chains.

         24                 The FSC is structured in a similar

         25  fashion to the International Labor Organization
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          2  (ILO) in that it is based on a tripartite structure

          3  bringing together members of the forest products

          4  industry (the FSC's economic chamber), environmental

          5  concerns (environmental chamber) and indigenous and

          6  labor organizations (social chamber).  Also similar

          7  to the ILO, the FSC's Principles and Criteria should

          8  be used in conjunction with national and

          9  international laws and regulations.  The FSC intends

         10  to complement, not supplant, other initiatives that

         11  support responsible forest management worldwide.

         12                 The guiding document of the FSC is

         13  its Principles and Criteria.  Principle #4:

         14  Community Relations and Worker's Rights is the

         15  section most relevant to labor issues.  It reads as

         16  follows:

         17                 Forest management operations shall

         18  maintain or enhance the long- term social and

         19  economic well- being of forest workers and local

         20  communities.

         21                 The communities within, or adjacent

         22  to, the forest management area should be given

         23  opportunities for employment, training and other

         24  services.

         25                 Forest management should meet or

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            184

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  exceed all applicable laws and/or regulations

          3  covering health and safety of employees and their

          4  families.

          5                 The rights of workers to organize and

          6  voluntarily negotiate with their employers shall be

          7  guaranteed as outlined in Conventions 87 and 98 of

          8  the International Labor Organization (ILO).

          9                 Management planning and operations

         10  shall incorporate the results of evaluations of

         11  social impact.  Consultations shall be maintained

         12  with peoples and groups directly effected by the

         13  management operations.

         14                 Appropriate mechanisms shall be

         15  employed for resolving grievances and for providing

         16  fair compensation in the case of loss or damage

         17  affecting the legal or customary rights, property,

         18  resources or livelihoods of local peoples.  Measures

         19  shall be taken to avoid such loss or damage.

         20                 While Principle #4 deals specifically

         21  with workers' rights, many of the other Principles

         22  support long- term sustainable jobs in the forestry

         23  sector.

         24                 The International Federation of

         25  Builders and Woodworkers (IFBWW) has taken the lead

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            185

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  in educating labor unions about forest certification

          3  and the importance of sustainable harvesting for

          4  sustainable jobs.  Unions are actively involved in

          5  the governance of the FSC.  Gisbert Schlemmer of the

          6  German Union IG Metall, sits on the FSC

          7  International's board of directors (treasurer).  The

          8  IFBWW, representing workers in many sectors of the

          9  wood products industry, sees certification as a

         10  useful and important tool for its members.  In its

         11  words:

         12                  "Forest certification is a tool that

         13  workers can use to improve working conditions and

         14  ensure the sustainable use of resources so that

         15  there are jobs into the future...Although

         16  certification should never be seen as a substitute

         17  for collective agreements at the company level, it

         18  can provide broad enforceable protection for

         19  workers.  Once a company has committed to the

         20  standards provided in its certification certificate,

         21  failure to meet the commitments results in a

         22  penalty.  Workers can report violations and use the

         23  certification process to ensure these violations are

         24  corrected."

         25                 The wood products industry is truly
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          2  global and sources wood products, from plywood to

          3  furniture, from a wide range of species, countries

          4  and labor sources.  These include Burmese teak,

          5  associated with child and slave labor, and Brazilian

          6  mahogany, 90 percent of which, by most estimates, is

          7  logged illegally (the wood is often "laundered"

          8  through other countries to avoid endangered species

          9  prosecution).  Presently, New York City and other

         10  consumers are promoting the worst practices in the

         11  industry by ignoring and thereby condoning the

         12  negative impacts on labor and the environment caused

         13  by unsustainably produced timber. Certification by

         14  the third- party, independent certifying bodies

         15  allows consumers to use their buying power to

         16  promote better management of the world's forests and

         17  better working conditions for timber workers across

         18  the globe.

         19                 I encourage the City of New York to

         20  stop being a part of the problem and become part of

         21  the solution with the passage of Intro. 108.  Thank

         22  you.

         23

         24  Testimony of:

         25  Hank Cauley
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          2  Executive Director

          3  Forest Stewardship Council, US

          4

          5                 The Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)

          6  is an independent, international non- profit

          7  organization.  Our goal is to promote sound,

          8  sustainable forestry both here in the US and abroad.

          9  The FSC was established in 1993 with input from

         10  environmental organizations as well as loggers and

         11  timber companies, and is supported by a broad mix of

         12  environmental, business and social interests.

         13                 The opportunity to protect, and

         14  promote better management of vast amounts of forest

         15  while ensuring the vitality of economic interests is

         16  unprecedented and quite challenging.  Dozens of NGOs

         17  have become critical players in this effort

         18  including The Nature Conservancy, Natural Resources

         19  Defense Council, World Wildlife Fund, Sierra Club,

         20  The Wilderness Society, Rainforest Action Network,

         21  Greenspeace, The National Wildlife Federation, and

         22  World Resources Institute.

         23                 Forestry under the FSC system

         24  provides a wood purchaser with the knowledge that

         25  their wood was produced in a sustainable manner,
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          2  legally, with fewer chemicals, and with protection

          3  of biological diversity and the environment.  FSC

          4  certification utilizes a list of ten principles and

          5  criteria to ensure that wood harvesting operations

          6  comply with all local, national and international

          7  laws; that indigenous people's rights are protected,

          8  and that high conservation values, things like

          9  endangered species, old growth timber, and

         10  biodiversity, are protected.  No other certification

         11  system in the world can match the FSC's scope.  We

         12  currently have 70.3- million acres certified in 56

         13  countries, including Mexico, Brazil, Bolivia and

         14  Columbia; 12.3 million acres in North America

         15  including seven hundred thousand acres of New York

         16  State forest land, and eight thousand wood products

         17  worldwide that bear the FSC label, from wood floors

         18  and doors to hairbrushes and picture frames.

         19                 The FSC forest principles and

         20  criteria are designed to be applicable to tropical,

         21  temperate, and boreal forests as well as to

         22  plantations and partially replanted forests, and

         23  thus provide a broad prescription applicable to a

         24  wide variety of forest types throughout the world.

         25  These principles and criteria represent the
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          2  framework from which regions have developed and

          3  approved regional standards, independent certifiers

          4  accredited by FSC such as the SmartWood program of

          5  the Rainforest Alliance and Scientific Certification

          6  Systems use those standards for certification

          7  assessments of logging company practices and wood

          8  tracking capabilities.  If a company passes the

          9  assessment then they can label their products with

         10  the FSC brand.  Ultimately, FSC's work provides

         11  consumers with a guarantee that the timber products

         12  they purchase have come from forests that have been

         13  evaluated and certified as being responsibly managed

         14  according to the highest standards available.   I

         15  would ask that a copy of the FSC's Principles and

         16  Criteria be made a part of the record.

         17                 FSC's rapid growth is due to its

         18  ability to respect the needs of business while

         19  guaranteeing that the forest that products came from

         20  is managed to protect clean water, wildlife habitat

         21  and recreation.  Companies accounting for at least

         22  25 percent of total US wood fiber demand have

         23  committed in the last two years to implement

         24  environmentally- sound purchasing policies. These

         25  include exhibiting a preference for FSC- certified
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          2  forest products, and a commitment to avoid sourcing

          3  from certain forests variously described as

          4  endangered, threatened, old growth and high

          5  conservation value (HCVF) forest.

          6                 Forest certification particularly

          7  through the FSC with its firm requirements on

          8  monitoring the movement of wood from the forest to

          9  its end use is also an effective strategy for

         10  combating illegal logging.

         11                 The world's great forest ecosystems

         12  are under siege from destructive logging practices,

         13  particularly those that are illegal, from the Great

         14  Northern Forest of the US Northeast, to the tropical

         15  rainforests of the Amazon.  One particular danger of

         16  non certified forestry is purchasing illegally

         17  harvested wood.  A recent United Nations report

         18  outlined the widespread problem of illegal logging.

         19                 Eighty percent of all logging in the

         20  Brazilian Amazon is illegal, according to the

         21  Brazilian Secretariat of Strategic Affairs.  Earlier

         22  this year, the Brazilian government shut down the

         23  national mahogany trade citing rampant illegal

         24  logging controlled by a Mahogany Mafia.  Only land

         25  certified by the FSC is still open to mahogany
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          2  trading.  A Wall Street Journal article from

          3  November, 2001 outlined the problem of the illegal

          4  mahogany trade, and I would ask that this article be

          5  made part of the record.

          6                 In the Democratic Republic of Congo

          7  red, according to a UN panel, exploitation of the

          8  natural resources of the country by foreign armies

          9  has become systematic and systemic.  Plundering,

         10  looting, racketeering, and the constitution of

         11  criminal cartels are becoming commonplace in the

         12  occupied territories.

         13                 In Indonesia, recent studies show

         14  that unauthorized logging is so widespread that in

         15  1998 illegal logging greatly exceeded the legal

         16  forest harvest.  Forty percent of the wood for

         17  Indonesia's large pulp and paper industry comes from

         18  undocumented sources.  In total it is estimated that

         19  2/3 of logging in Indonesia now takes place

         20  illegally.

         21                 The FSC, with its emphasis on

         22  compliance with all local, state, national and

         23  international laws, is one of the best systems for

         24  combating illegal logging.  For New York, requiring

         25  wood certification from an organization like the FSC
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          2  will provide a guarantee that its wood purchases

          3  were obtained in compliance with the law, no matter

          4  where the FSC wood comes from.

          5                 In supporting the legislation by

          6  Speaker Gifford, you are using New York City's

          7  purchasing power to protect the world's endangered

          8  forest ecosystems.  Through responsible purchasing,

          9  municipalities can help shift markets away from

         10  illegally or unsustainably harvested wood products

         11  towards sustainably harvested, reclaimed or recycled

         12  wood products and wood alternatives.  The New York

         13  City Council is to be congratulated for being a

         14  leader in promoting responsible forest management on

         15  a worldwide basis with this ground- breaking

         16  legislation.

         17                 Shifting consumption of wood products

         18  from old growth, clear- cut wood toward independent,

         19  third- party certified products like those that will

         20  come from FSC certified lands, allows consumers,

         21  both individual and institutionalized, to use their

         22  purchasing power to support more sustainable forest

         23  management and harvesting practices.

         24                 As the world's top consumers of

         25  forest products, Americans not only bear special
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          2  responsibility for the accelerating rate of global

          3  deforestation, they also hold the key to the

          4  solution.  A significant amount of the wood consumed

          5  in the US is used by municipalities, making cities

          6  like New York key players in the future of our

          7  forests.

          8

          9  Testimony of:

         10  Rita Ferris

         11  Director, Legislative and Regulatory Affairs

         12  Northeastern Retail Lumber Association

         13

         14

         15                 NRLA recommends that wood

         16  certification systems include the following:

         17                 1.  Scientifically based standards.

         18                 2.  Third- party auditing.

         19                 3.  Product labeling.

         20                 4.  Credible procedures.

         21                 Chairman Jackson and distinguished

         22  members of the Committee on Contracts, thank you for

         23  the opportunity to testify on Intro. No. 108- A.

         24                 My name is Rita Ferris and I am the

         25  Director of Legislative and Regulatory Affairs for
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          2  the Northeastern Retail Lumber Association (NRLA).

          3  I am testifying on behalf of the 56 independent

          4  lumber dealers in the metropolitan area.  As stated

          5  in our name, we are independent, family- owned

          6  businesses, which distinguishes ourselves from the

          7  big boxes like Lowes and Home Depot.  Many of our

          8  members have been operating in this city for nearly

          9  a century.  Lumber is the main product that we sell

         10  and we have a strong commitment to do so in a

         11  responsible way, not only to secure our supply for

         12  the future, but because it is the right thing to do.

         13    In fact, the members of our organization have

         14  invested substantial time to become educated to

         15  formulate a wood certification policy for the

         16  industry.  Our policy is outlined on the cover of

         17  this testimony.

         18                 The NRLA is opposed to Intro. No.

         19  108- A.  Currently, the Forest Stewardship Council

         20  (FSC) system is the only certified wood system which

         21  meets the criteria of the bill.

         22                 Certified wood is a relatively new

         23  product to the industry and therefore supply is

         24  extremely limited.  In fact, only 3 to 5 percent of

         25  the worlds working forests are FSC certified.  In an
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          2  interview last year with National Home Channel News,

          3  FSC official conceded that they "needed to increase

          4  their supply of certified wood as demand exceed

          5  supply by at least 10 times." Interestingly, FSC has

          6  experienced the slowest growth rate of all major

          7  wood certification systems.  Naturally, this is an

          8  issue of great concern to lumber suppliers who have

          9  a true desire to promote certified wood products.

         10  When asked about the slow growth rate, FSC's U.S.

         11  Executive Director Hank Cauley replied," We are

         12  interested in quality, not quantity."  So I ask,

         13  where is there a demonstration that there is a real

         14  intention of bringing a significant source of

         15  certified wood into the main stream? Enacting a law

         16  to limit the purchase of lumber to FSC certified

         17  lumber only serves to limit a retailer's ability to

         18  promote the use of certified wood to the public.

         19                 NRLA strongly believes that if you

         20  want to make a significant impact in the issue, the

         21  legislation needs to provide an incentive to the

         22  greatest percentage of landowners.  In the United

         23  States, 59 percent of the land is owned by non-

         24  industrial landowners.  These are your mom and pop

         25  land ownership operations. Thirty percent of the
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          2  land is owned by the forest supply industry (only 16

          3  percent of which is considered to be "productive").

          4  Six percent of the land is dedicated as "other

          5  public lands" and the remaining five percent of

          6  lands are dedicated as National forests.

          7                 For the non- industrial landowner,

          8  again, the largest percentage of land ownership, the

          9  average size of a parcel is 17 acres or less.  This

         10  is important because the smaller the parcel size,

         11  the more difficult and more expensive it becomes for

         12  landowners to implement a wood certification system.

         13    Smaller parcels generate smaller timber sales,

         14  which in turn generate lower bids for timber.  This

         15  increases the cost of implementing sustainable

         16  management practices.  The FSC certification system

         17  is extremely cost prohibitive for small landowners,

         18  but there are other certification systems out there

         19  that are within the landowners, but there are other

         20  certification systems out there that are within the

         21  reach of the small landowner.  New York City is in

         22  an excellent position to encourage their

         23  participation in these systems out there that are

         24  within the reach of the small landowner. New York

         25  City is in an excellent position to encourage their
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          2  participation in these systems and NRLA believes it

          3  should do so.

          4                 Our big box competitors have made

          5  promises to provide a purchasing preference to FSC

          6  only products and have now found themselves out on a

          7  limb because there just is not enough supply

          8  available to meet their needs.  NRLA believes that

          9  New York City is destined to experience the same

         10  frustration.

         11                 In closing, I would like to say that

         12  all certification experts agree that today there

         13  isn't one certification system that can provide

         14  enough supply to satisfy all demand.  NRLA believes

         15  that competition is important for environmental

         16  protection because the higher the participation is

         17  in the certified wood systems, the higher the

         18  percentage of sustainably managed lands.  We also

         19  believe that competition is good for the public.  It

         20  ensures that one system does not monopolize the

         21  market.  It also encourages a high quality product

         22  and lower prices.

         23                 Once again, I would like to urge this

         24  Committee allow our industry and other interested

         25  parties to sit down and discuss how we can advance a
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          2  strong policy that meets your goals and NRLA's goals

          3  of encouraging the use of certified lumber while

          4  ensuring there is enough supply to fulfill that

          5  goal.

          6                 Thank you for taking the time to hear

          7  my testimony. I would be pleased to answer any

          8  questions you may have.

          9

         10  Testimony of:

         11  Stephan Chenault

         12  Chairperson, Good Wood Committee

         13  Sierra Club, New York City Group

         14

         15                 As Chairperson of the Good Wood

         16  Committee of the Sierra Club, New York City Group,

         17  and a concerned citizen of New York City who has

         18  worked for several years to establish selective

         19  purchasing legislation in New York City to protect

         20  forests, forest peoples, and forest workers globally

         21  and locally, I would like to thank Robert Jackson,

         22  Chairman of the Contracts Committee, Speaker Gifford

         23  Miller, who introduced the bill, and the Contracts

         24  Committee of the New York City Council for holding

         25  this hearing on Intro. No. 108- A.      The City
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          2  uses a huge amount of wood for such uses as

          3  boardwalks, park benches, decking for walkways,

          4  buildings and other purposes.  This legislation

          5  provides a great opportunity for the City Council

          6  and New York City to take on a leadership role in

          7  forest protection, and the protection of forest

          8  peoples and workers by ensuring that wood purchased

          9  for New York City contracts for building materials

         10  and furniture will be from forestry operations that

         11  protect forests ecologically, as well as protect the

         12  rights of forest communities, indigenous people and

         13  forest workers.  The legislation will also promote

         14  the use of other environmentally preferable building

         15  materials, including those manufactured from waste

         16  materials thus helping to solve problems of solid

         17  waste and creating employment opportunities.

         18                 Forests are of immense ecological,

         19  cultural, aesthetic, and economic importance.  They

         20  are a major reservoir of biodiversity, containing

         21  more than half of the earth's animal and plant

         22  species.  Forests are also home and the living

         23  resource for numerous groups of indigenous people

         24  and traditional societies who depend on the forests

         25  that will flourish into perpetuity are essential to
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          2  the long- term interests of communities associated

          3  with forests as well as forest workers.

          4                 Forests also regulate and stabilize

          5  the climate, counterbalance global warming, purify

          6  water, protect watersheds and drinking water,

          7  provide flood control and prevent droughts, conserve

          8  topsoil, buffer storm impacts, and sustain

          9  fisheries. Forests are also important as both the

         10  home and resource base for indigenous people and

         11  local communities providing food, fibers, medicines,

         12  and other necessities for their continued survival,

         13  cultural integrity, and well being.

         14                 Despite the ecological, cultural, and

         15  economic importance of forests, destruction of

         16  forest ecosystems continues at an alarming rate.

         17  The World Resources institute estimates that 33.8

         18  million acres of tropical forest are lost each year.

         19    About half of the earth's temperate and tropical

         20  rainforest has been lost.   These destructive

         21  processes are destroying countless plant and animal

         22  species, depleting biodiversity, disrupting local

         23  and global ecological processes, and destroying

         24  cultures and the way of life of traditional peoples.

         25                 Unsustainable logging practices in
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          2  most areas continue to endanger indigenous

          3  communities throughout the world. Indigenous peoples

          4  are often displaced from their land by unsustainable

          5  logging practices and subsequent development.  Often

          6  forced to live in sedentary settlements, many of

          7  these people are unable to continue their

          8  traditional way of life, and inadequate nutrition

          9  and disease are common problems.  Unsustainable

         10  logging is often carried out illegally, violating

         11  the rights of local communities.

         12                 In addition, although unsustainable

         13  logging sometimes provides employment opportunities,

         14  these jobs tend to be low- paid, short- term, and

         15  dangerous, while labor, health, and safety standards

         16  are often weak and unenforced.  In Burma, forced

         17  labor for logging by the Burmese military is well

         18  documented.

         19                 The ecological destruction that

         20  typically accompanies unsustainable logging is

         21  particularly devastating to local communities and

         22  indigenous peoples who rely on the forests for their

         23  survival. Unsustainable logging seriously increases

         24  soil erosion, compromising rivers and the viability

         25  of fish stocks, an important food source.
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          2                 In Malaysia, a Sarawak Government

          3  study showed that in recently unsustainably logged

          4  areas, there is a threefold increase in serious

          5  malnutrition in native communities, while a study of

          6  nutrition among indigenous peoples in the Brazilian

          7  Amazon has revealed the highest rates of

          8  malnutrition in areas that had been invaded by

          9  loggers.  Unsustainable logging may also result new

         10  inequalities, a migration to urban areas, and the

         11  undermining of customary laws, social support

         12  networks, and systems of language management.

         13                 Intro. No. 108 addresses this crisis

         14  by ensuring that wood purchased for New York City

         15  contracts will be from ecologically sustainable

         16  forestry operations, that protect the ecological

         17  values of forests as well as human and workers

         18  rights. The forest management standards called for

         19  in the bill, including on- the- ground- audits and

         20  separate chain- of- custody certification, linking

         21  each certified forest product to its certified

         22  forest of origin, are absolutely essential to

         23  achieve the ecological and human rights purposes of

         24  this legislation, and I am happy to say that the

         25  Forest Stewardship Council, the international
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          2  certification program supported by environmental,

          3  labor, and human rights groups across the globe,

          4  meets the standards outlined in this legislation.

          5  These measures ensure that the bill will support

          6  sustainable forestry everywhere, including forestry

          7  practices and employment associated with the 700,000

          8  acres of Forest Stewardship Council certified New

          9  York State forests.

         10                 Only with the passage of Intro. No.

         11  108 will New York City citizens be assured that wood

         12  purchased for New York City contracts is not causing

         13  the destruction of forests, the disruption of

         14  traditional communities, or the abuse of human and

         15  worker rights.  Only with the passage of Intro. No.

         16  108, will New Yorkers know that wood used for city

         17  boardwalks or park benches does not come from

         18  illegal logging that invades indigenous peoples'

         19  lands and sometimes physically abuses these people.

         20  Only with the passage of Intro. No.108, will New

         21  Yorkers be assured that their wood is not coming

         22  from forced labor, or from forestry operations

         23  displacing indigenous communities such as the Aka

         24  and Mbuti, forest dwelling people of Africa, or

         25  indigenous tribes in Brazil.  Only with the passage
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          2  of Intro. No. 108 will New Yorkers know that their

          3  City's wood purchases are not supporting forestry

          4  operations that disrupt traditional communities

          5  resulting in malnutrition and social deterioration.

          6                 I strongly urge you to pass Intro.

          7  No. 108 and bring the legislation to a full vote in

          8  the Council.  Having spoken to hundreds of New

          9  Yorkers over the last few years about this

         10  legislation, I know that New Yorkers strongly

         11  support the City becoming a leader in forest

         12  protection and that New Yorkers find this

         13  legislation a good, effective, fair, and practical

         14  means of ensuring ecological protection for forests

         15  and the protection of human and worker rights.

         16  Thank you.

         17

         18  Testimony of:

         19  Forest Products Association of Canada,

         20  Canadian Wood Council, and

         21  Forest Alliance of British Columbia

         22  Joint Submission to the New York City Council

         23

         24                 1.  This submission is being made on

         25  behalf of the members of the Forest Products
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          2  Association of Canada (FPAC), the Canadian Wood

          3  Council (CWC), and the Forest Alliance of British

          4  Columbia.  The members of these organizations are

          5  committed to the development of an industry that is

          6  socio- economically and environmentally sustainable

          7  on a long- term basis.  Our members are committed to

          8  the use of ecological forestry practices and forest

          9  products are made from a fully renewable and

         10  biodegradable resources.  Sustainable forest

         11  management ensures use and regeneration of this

         12  resource at an accelerated rate while preserving

         13  biodiversity and conserving wildlife.

         14                 2.  FPAC is the voice of Canada's

         15  wood, pulp and paper producers nationally and

         16  internationally in government, trade and

         17  environmental affairs.  FPAC represents the

         18  country's largest producers of pulp, paper and wood

         19  products, and its members have responsibility for

         20  over 75 percent of the working forests in Canada.

         21  FPAC provides an active forum for advancing issues

         22  of importance to the Canadian forest products

         23  industry and the 1,200 communities it sustains

         24  across the country, including programs to promote

         25  Canada's leadership in sustainable forest management
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          2  and environmental stewardship.  In January 2002,

          3  FPAC announced that all member companies will be

          4  required to submit their forest management practices

          5  to the scrutiny of independent, third- party audits,

          6  and that successful certification, to one of three

          7  internationally- recognized standards, will be a

          8  condition of association membership by January 1,

          9  2007.  The three standards are Canadian'a National

         10  Sustainable Forest Management Standard (CAN/CSA

         11  Z809), the Forest Stewardship Council (FSS)

         12  Principles and Criteria, and the Sustainable

         13  Forestry Initiative (SFI) Standard.

         14                 3.  Incorporated as a non- profit

         15  corporation in 1959, the CWC is the national

         16  federation of wood product manufacturing

         17  associations in Canada.  Through its membership, CWC

         18  represents 90 percent of Canadian lumber production

         19  including plywood, oriented strand board, treated

         20  wood, "glu- lam" and trusses.  CWC is mandated to

         21  represent the Canadian industry in relation to codes

         22  and standard development agencies throughout North

         23  America to ensure wood products are used in a safe,

         24  efficient manner in regard to fire safety,

         25  structural performance, and meet evolving
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          2  requirements for indoors air quality, thermal

          3  efficiency and environmental stewardship.

          4                 4.  The forest Alliance of British

          5  Columbia (FABC) is an industry- sponsored citizens

          6  coalition with some 10,000 members from across the

          7  province.  FABC has a mandate to promote sustainable

          8  forest management in the international market place.

          9  FABC is a full member of the Forest Stewardship

         10  Council and the US Green Buildings Council and has

         11  special consultative NGO status with the United

         12  Nations.

         13                 5.  We are making this submission in

         14  response to your plans to implement a policy to

         15  support ecological forestry practices in relation to

         16  New York City's future procurement of wood products.

         17    While the implementation of these types of

         18  policies can contribute to environmental

         19  improvements that can make a valuable contribution

         20  to the achievement of sustainable development, if

         21  too narrowly defined, they can also have a

         22  discriminatory effect and limit choice in the

         23  marketplace.  To ensure that this is not the case,

         24  such policies should be voluntary and be inclusive,

         25  as opposed to exclusionary, to avoid unnecessary
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          2  discrimination and the establishment of monopolies

          3  which could severely limit the City's access to

          4  products.  The benefits of taking an inclusive

          5  approach to sustainable forest management

          6  certification were evident at the recently concluded

          7  Forest Leadership Forum organized by the Certified

          8  Forest Products Council in Atlanta, Georgia.

          9                 6.  Given that Canada ranks second in

         10  the world in softwood lumber production and 88

         11  percent of Canada's softwood lumber exports go to

         12  the United States, which accounts for approximately

         13  34 percent of the US market share, Canada has a

         14  great interest in these types of initiatives.

         15                 7.  We applaud the New York City

         16  Council's initiative to ensure that the wood

         17  products it purchases come from sustainably managed

         18  forests.  Canada is a forest nation which is

         19  committed to the principles of sustainable forest

         20  management.  Due to the fact that the public owns 90

         21  percent of Canada's forest lands, Canadian forest

         22  products companies must operate within a strict set

         23  of provincial regulations and national criteria and

         24  indicators.  This commitment to sustainable forest

         25  management has resulted in Canada having the most
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          2  protected forests as a nation in the world (source:

          3  World Resources Institute Data Tables 2000 2001).

          4  In addition to strict provincial laws, numerous

          5  federal lawsuit apply to forest activities.  Earlier

          6  this week, Canada's Species at Risk Bill was passed

          7  by one of our two federal houses of Parliament, and

          8  goes before the second house, the Senate, as early

          9  as today.

         10                 8.  After reviewing the text in

         11  Intro. 108, we offer the following specific comments

         12  on this proposed initiative.

         13                 Upon review of Intro. 108, including

         14  the extensive process requirements and potential

         15  costs it would impose on the City, we find criteria

         16  within Intro. 108 are excessively detailed, and

         17  therefore excessively onerous.  We maintain that you

         18  could obtain the same objectives by adopting a

         19  streamline policy in this case.  For example, if you

         20  were to adopt the text attached as outlined in annex

         21  #1 to this submission, you would reduce the

         22  bureaucratic and related costs involved in

         23  implementing this initiative.

         24                 As we stated to you in August, in the

         25  relatively new unfolding world of sustainability
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          2  certification, systems of land ownership play a

          3  critical role in the implementation of chain- of

          4  custody.  In connection with Intro. 108, we again

          5  draw your attention to the current lack of supply of

          6  third- party certified wood products that carry

          7  chain- of- custody certification.

          8                 We note that in jurisdictions where

          9  land ownership patterns allow it, chain- of- custody

         10  is a growing aspect to companies' third- party

         11  verified sustainable forest management certified

         12  products.  However, in jurisdictions where millions

         13  of private non- industrial landowners supply the

         14  majority of the wood, credible procurement policies

         15  must recognize good forest management without

         16  penalizing the landowner because of his or her

         17  practical inability to obtain chain- of- custody

         18  verification.  According the Forest Stewardship

         19  Council International, current FSC certified forest

         20  products in the international marketplace that

         21  include a verified chain- of- custody amount to

         22  approximately five percent of the FSC global market.

         23    Given the current scarcity of certified wood with

         24  a verified chain- of- custody, and its impractical

         25  nature in certain jurisdictions, we suggest that you
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          2  move more cautiously in connection with chain- of-

          3  custody.  In time, there may be a case for citing it

          4  as a preference, but not as a necessary requirement.

          5  As the certification world develops, and where land

          6  ownership patterns more practically allow landowners

          7  to do so, in future chain- of- custody may become a

          8  viable option.  Currently, however, its inclusion

          9  will have the effect of reducing the availability of

         10  third- party verified sustainable forest management

         11  certified wood products for New York City's building

         12  projects.

         13                 On the definition of forest

         14  certification systems, we recommend that you

         15  recognize the full range of options that are

         16  available for use globally.  Compiling a list of all

         17  the third party verified forest certification

         18  options currently available in an appendix to your

         19  legislation could do this.  Many leading

         20  organizations, both public and private are

         21  developing procurement policies that give preference

         22  to a wide range of forest certification standards so

         23  as to ensure both quality and the availability of

         24  product.  For purchasers of forest products,

         25  certification provides third- party verification
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          2  that such products are from sustainably managed

          3  forests.  There are currently three types of

          4  internationally recognized forest certification

          5  being used in Canada, including:  The Canadian

          6  Standards Association (CSA); the Forest Stewardship

          7  Council; and the American- based Sustainable

          8  Forestry Initiative (SFI) programs.  As a result,

          9  Canada has the largest amount of certified land of

         10  any country in the world.

         11                 On the definition of environmentally

         12  preferable products, we suggest that this

         13  consideration by made using life cycle based

         14  thinking, including the practice of life cycle

         15  assessment.  Life cycle assessment is a method used

         16  to compare the environmental effects of different

         17  building materials and considers those effects over

         18  the life of the material including extraction,

         19  manufacturing, construction, and recycling or

         20  disposal at the end of the useful life of material.

         21  This would ensure that the City's procurement policy

         22  would not exclude resource- efficient engineered

         23  wood products that use small dimension or fast

         24  growing species.  We recommend that the City include

         25  a statement to give preference to engineered wood
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          2  products such as finger- jointed lumber, I joist,

          3  and glued laminated lumber.  A global statement

          4  referencing engineered wood products would be

          5  preferable to attempting to list them as

          6  technological and product- related developments

          7  expand to provide more choices.

          8                 9.  With the addition of the

          9  principles outlined within this submission, and in

         10  particular our strong recommendation that you

         11  exercise caution in relation to chain- of- custody

         12  because of core difference in land ownership among

         13  various jurisdictions, differences which in turn

         14  have key implications on this new certification

         15  concept, we believe your proposed procurement policy

         16  for wood products would then have the strength and

         17  flexibility necessary to make it a practical and

         18  effective initiative.  While we cannot support the

         19  initiative in its current form, our organizations

         20  are prepared to provide any additional information

         21  that you may require to help make your decision in

         22  this case.  We look forward to your response to this

         23  submission and are committed to helping you

         24  establish a procurement policy that is practical and

         25  effective.
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          2

          3  Testimony of:

          4  Michael Phillips Q.C.

          5  Canadian Consulate General

          6

          7                 Dear Speaker Miller and Members of

          8  the Contracts Committee,

          9                 I am writing to you concerning Intro.

         10  108, a local law to amend the administrative code of

         11  the City of New York in relation to city contracts

         12  involving the purchase of wood products and

         13  materials.  I understand that the goal of this

         14  legislation is to enable the City of New York to

         15  know whether it is purchasing wood products that

         16  originate from responsibly managed forests and to

         17  encourage sustainable forestry management (SFM).  In

         18  this context, I understand that the legislation

         19  specifies the criteria that must be met by a forest

         20  certification program in order for it to be deemed

         21  eligible to provide certification that wood products

         22  are sustainably produced.

         23                 The Government of Canada strongly

         24  supports the central purpose of Intro. 108, namely

         25  the encouragement of SFM at home and abroad through
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          2  appropriate domestic actions.  However, we are

          3  concerned that the legislation may prevent the City

          4  of New York from purchasing Canadian wood products

          5  which although sustainably produced, may not have

          6  been certified to the specific, narrow criteria

          7  identified for eligible certification systems in

          8  Intro. 108.

          9                 Further, we believe that adoption of

         10  a bill requiring the procurement of wood products

         11  from only certified suppliers will unnecessarily

         12  restrict New York City's sources of supply, increase

         13  its procurement costs and decrease efficiency,

         14  particularly if a narrow definition of acceptable

         15  certification systems were to be adopted.  We also

         16  note that the drafting legislation inherently

         17  recognizes that some time will be needed for the

         18  market to provide sufficient certified wood: It

         19  provides for waiver of the requirement for certified

         20  wood products when the supplier is unable to provide

         21  sufficient product to meet the particular contract.

         22  Canada believes that a less prescriptive approach as

         23  to the specific certification system would reduce

         24  the need to waive the proposed requirements for

         25  supply reasons.
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          2                 Canada supports the use of a

          3  purchasing policy that encourages the widest

          4  possible range of responsible actions and actors

          5  consistent with defensible SFM criteria.  In our

          6  experience, SFM is best assured by forest managers'

          7  adherence to high regulatory, policy and program

          8  standards, appropriate to the given forest

          9  ecosystem.  While certification systems may help

         10  buyers by providing credible assurance that they are

         11  supporting SFM, any policies intended to promote

         12  sustainable forest practices, particularly those

         13  based on forest certification, need to be effective.

         14    As the Intergovernmental Forum on Forests and its

         15  predecessor the Intergovernmental Panel on Forests

         16  concluded, "certification is among many potentially

         17  useful tools that can be employed to promote

         18  sustainable forest management."

         19                 Canadian forest- sector companies

         20  operate in a highly regulated environment in which

         21  they are subject to regular scrutiny and audit.

         22  Canadian companies also exhibit a commitment to

         23  certification as demonstrated by the influential

         24  Forest Products Association of Canada's (FPAC)

         25  recent announcement that as a condition of
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          2  membership, all member companies will be required to

          3  participate in a credible forest certification

          4  program (this policy currently includes the Forest

          5  Stewardship Council, Canadian Standards Association

          6  and Sustainable Forestry Initiative).

          7                 Canada recognizes and is prepared to

          8  work with the current multiple certification

          9  systems, an approach which is fully supported by

         10  Canadian industry.  It is our hope that the City of

         11  New York's legislation, currently under

         12  consideration, will adhere to the central purpose of

         13  promoting sustainable forest management by avoiding

         14  narrow criteria for eligible forest certification

         15  schemes and by supporting all credible certification

         16  schemes as well as SFM practices more generally.

         17                 Finally, while we understand the

         18  Council's interest in looking at broader

         19  environmental implications, we would observe that

         20  determinations of what constitutes "environmentally

         21  preferable building material" i.e. Recycled plastic,

         22  should be based on life cycle analysis and that the

         23  substitution of wood products by non wood products

         24  should not be assumed to achieve the desired

         25  environmental outcome.  We encourage you to apply
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          2  the same level of scrutiny to such products that

          3  certification provides to wood products.

          4                 Thank you for taking the time to

          5  consider our views. If it would be helpful to the

          6  New York City Council in its deliberations on this

          7  bill, I would be pleased to provide additional

          8  information on these matters.  May I close by

          9  assuring you that Canada remains supportive of

         10  efforts to advance the environmental objective that

         11  we share.

         12                 Sincerely yours,

         13                 Michael Phillips Q.C.

         14                 Consul General

         15

         16  Testimony of:

         17  Tim Keating

         18  Executive Director

         19  Rainforest Relief

         20

         21                 Facts About Tropical Forest

         22  Destruction and New York's Use of Tropical Woods:

         23                 Fifty to ninety percent of the

         24  world's species are contained in tropical forests.

         25                 As scientists investigate
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          2  rainforests, estimates of numbers of species on

          3  planet Earth continue to climb, with one prominent

          4  entomologist estimating the number of just insect

          5  species at 100 million.

          6                 The loss of just 150 square feet of

          7  rainforest may drive as many a 1,000 species of just

          8  beetles into oblivion.

          9                 Due to the loss of tropical forests

         10  it is now confirmed our Earth has been pushed into

         11  only the sixth great Mass Extinction to have

         12  occurred in the 3.5- billion- year history of life

         13  on Earth.

         14                 Two billion people depend in whole or

         15  in part on tropical rainforests for at least some of

         16  their daily subsistence; many of those are

         17  indigenous people wholly dependent on their forests.

         18                 At least 10 indigenous Amazonian

         19  tribes in Brazil have had members murdered by

         20  illegal loggers.

         21                 From the peaceful Baka "pygmies" of

         22  West Africa to the Penan and Iban of Borneo; the

         23  Xikrin, Tembe, Wye Wye and dozens of others in the

         24  Brazilian Amazon; and even uncontacted tribes in

         25  Peru, around the world, indigenous forest people are
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          2  displaced, forcibly relocated and even murdered

          3  outright in conflicts with loggers, their lands

          4  invaded and stripped of their life- giving forests.

          5                 In one notable incident, at least 13

          6  Yanomami were massacred by loggers in retaliation

          7  for killing a logger that had illegally invaded

          8  their lands and killed a member of their tribe. The

          9  13 included women, children and tribal elders.

         10                 The woods most sought in tropical

         11  forests are those that command high prices at the

         12  ports, that is, those with a high export value.

         13                 Excessive demand in importing

         14  countries is driving illegal and rapacious logging

         15  in tropical forests around the world.

         16                 The UN Food and Agriculture

         17  Organization counts only the total clearing of trees

         18  as "deforestation" and thus underestimates the role

         19  of rapacious logging for timber.

         20                 Logging for timber is in fact the

         21  largest factor leading to the destruction of

         22  rainforests, as loggers seeking high value woods for

         23  export, such as mahogany and ipe in the Amazon,

         24  greenheart in Guyana, ramin and keruing in Indonesia

         25  and African mahogany in Cameroon, Gabon and Cote
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          2  d'Ivoir, punch roads into pristine forests, thus

          3  opening them up for further destruction.

          4                 Philippines, once the largest

          5  tropical plywood exporter in the world, is now over

          6  80 percent deforested and is a net timber importer.

          7  Illegal logging continues in the Philippines. The

          8  same fate has befallen Thailand, 70 percent

          9  deforested and still being illegally logged, and

         10  much of Africa, having lost from 50 to 90 percent of

         11  its original forest cover.

         12                 New York City is the largest

         13  Municipal consumer of tropical hardwoods in North

         14  America and possibly in the world.

         15                 Each year city agencies order tens of

         16  thousands of board feet of ipe illegally logged from

         17  the Brazilian Amazon for boardwalk renovations and

         18  park benches; greeheart from Guyana where illegal

         19  logging is rampant, for redecking of the Brooklyn

         20  Bridge and repairs to the Staten Island Ferry

         21  terminals; and ekki from African rainforests for

         22  subway track ties.

         23                 Timber is increasingly associated

         24  with armed conflict in countries such as Cote

         25  d'Ivoir, Liberia, Burma, Cambodia and elsewhere as

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            222

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  the vast profits from illegal timber are funneled to

          3  weapons' purchases by armies and mercenaries

          4  terrorizing local residents.

          5                 A recent order of subway track ties

          6  by NYCTA was traced to a Chinese company operating

          7  in Liberia.  The principal of the company is none

          8  other than Gus van Koewenhoven, notoriously for his

          9  illegal gun running to Sierra leone rebels as well

         10  as his dealings with the Al Qeada network.  So,

         11  ironically, due to the specifying of tropical

         12  hardwoods from uncertified sources, New York

         13  taxpayers' money may have been used by armed gangs

         14  bringing terror to West Africa as well as having

         15  made its way to the very group that Americans

         16  believe took down the World Trade Center.

         17                 There are dozens of reasons not to

         18  use uncertified tropical hardwoods.  As there are

         19  dozens of reasons to use recycled plastic lumber:

         20  Local job creation, reduced land filling, reduced

         21  maintenance and lawsuits, and saving vast sums of

         22  money over time.

         23                 The conclusion of a preliminary

         24  economic analysis of a 100,000- board- foot

         25  boardwalk deck over a 100- year life span shows the
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          2  following costs for materials and labor: For toxic-

          3  chemical treated softwoods, about $5 million

          4  ($4,921,875); for tropical hardwoods, about $3.5

          5  million ($3,267,382.75); and for RPL, $825,250.

          6                 An area of Staten Island Ferry

          7  terminal bumpers was replaced four years ago with

          8  recycled plastic lumber.  Today, after years of

          9  collisions with 100- ton ferries, the planks look

         10  like the day they were put in, while the wood around

         11  them has broken, splintered and been replaced.  Yet,

         12  DOT has no plans to switch to RPL for terminal

         13  bumpers.

         14                 Our campaigns have embarrassed the

         15  Parks Department into switching to RPL for two of

         16  four bench designs and for park play sets, which

         17  used to be ipe.  But Parks refuses to even test RPL

         18  on the boardwalks or to use it for the other

         19  benches.

         20                 Chicago Transit Authority has already

         21  purchased over 55,000 cost- saving and low-

         22  maintenance RPL track ties, yet NYCTA has yet to

         23  make the switch.

         24                 Our City agencies, endowed with the

         25  power to decide how our tax moneys are used, seem
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          2  mired in the past, refusing to embrace even 20th

          3  century technologies such as recycled plastic

          4  lumber.

          5                 It is time for the Council to end our

          6  City's participation in the destruction of tropical

          7  forests, the murder of indigenous peoples, the

          8  massive global trade in illegally logged tropical

          9  timber and the funneling of money to terrorism and

         10  armed conflicts around the world; time for the

         11  Council to legislatively drag our City agencies into

         12  the 21st Century.

         13

         14  Testimony of:

         15  Joseph Murray

         16  Forest For Tomorrow Inc.

         17

         18                 FSC accelerates deforestation of

         19  America.  It expand logging of federal, state and

         20  corporate lands.  It wastes millions of trees cut

         21  annually.  Penalizes the forest industry.

         22                 Exclusion of billions and billions of

         23  board feet of timber, that come from non- certified

         24  sources, such as highway improvements, residential

         25  and commercial development, expansion of state and
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          2  federal building, development of city or suburban

          3  lots, fully approved by local zoning and building

          4  departments, has profound negative implications on

          5  the environment...tree companies, excavators,

          6  highway departments, urban and suburban mom and pop

          7  sawmills, all excluded from selling or manufacturing

          8  wood.  Every company in New Jersey, southern New

          9  York State, all of Long Island, and most of

         10  Connecticut would be out of business.  Every tree,

         11  compiling as much, or more than, 200 million board

         12  foot annually, within a 75 mile radius of New York

         13  City is trashed.  They present the future of the

         14  forest industry, particularly east of the

         15  Mississippi, depends on trees garnered from small

         16  wood lots, be it Staten Island, Queens, or any of

         17  the City's suburbs.  No tree if it must be cut,

         18  should be intentionally wasted.

         19                 Urban/suburban timber streams that

         20  are not, and cannot be certified according to FSC,

         21  require compensating volumes to keep the industry in

         22  production.  The primary certified lands are

         23  federal, state and corporate operation.  This means

         24  to certified lumber, more trees from these areas

         25  must be cut to offset volumes lost from non-
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          2  certified operations.  The impact reveals 25 50

          3  percent more trees will be cut above and beyond

          4  current deforestation rates, devastating the

          5  environment, accelerating global warming.  More

          6  trees, not less, will be cut in the future for

          7  suburban expansion.  It is urban/suburban trees that

          8  must be utilized and recycled, not expansion of

          9  federal and state forest lands.

         10                 Trees, timber, lumber accrued from

         11  natural population and economic growth is assailed.

         12  FSC refuses to recognize and acknowledge that the

         13  vast proportion of trees cut are through the duly

         14  elected or appointed government agencies and

         15  officials designated by the people. (Local

         16  community).  In essence, the problem is not that

         17  timber is from an illegitimate source, but rather

         18  from a designated and authorized source.  Government

         19  does not have the capacity or means to inventory its

         20  local tree populations.  A lack of financial

         21  resources of local government to track each

         22   'permitted' site is the quintessential dilemma.

         23  That local and small businesses in an effort to be

         24  environmentally conscious,  and simultaneously

         25  derive economic benefit from their work, should
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          2  prevent them from recycling trees is preposterous.

          3  Chain- of- custody is neither necessary or possible

          4  for small wood lots.

          5                 Excavators, tree companies, highway

          6  departments, homeowners are not illegitimate dealers

          7  of timber.  They should not be penalized.  The focus

          8  of environmentalists should be on local government

          9  in planning, reforestation, recycling, utilization,

         10  specific agencies of government designed to ensure

         11  bonafide tree cutting methodologies.

         12  Environmentalists should be concentrating efforts at

         13  the local level.  Require each building department

         14  oversight, or to recognize the need to certify

         15  urban/suburban producers of timber.  Urban

         16  certifiers, such as ALPS (alternative log

         17  procurement sources), can ensure genuine origination

         18  of trees cut in the urban/suburban environment.

         19                 Last month, May, the EU voted in

         20  support of the Kyoto protocol.  The primary tenet is

         21  maximum resource utilization and efficiency.  FSC

         22  contradicts Kyoto, because it requires the wasting

         23  of millions of trees and valuable lumber.  To be for

         24  one, demands opposition to the other.

         25                 Proof of the anti- environmental
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          2  nature of FSC, was made evident in New York State.

          3  Legislation (S946/A11426) intended to promote

          4  utilization of trees felled in the urban/suburban

          5  environment, opposed by environmental groups such as

          6  the Sierra Club.  The bill, supported by the New

          7  York State DEC recognizes the importance of resource

          8  utilization rather than waste.  The legislation

          9  promotes urban waste streams and elevates it to

         10  preferred status.  Opposition to the legislation is

         11  derived from recognition of the myriad of other

         12  positive certification schemes that include

         13  recycling trees.  All other certification systems

         14  recognize and encourage the recycling of trees and

         15  their wood products.  FSC is the only system that

         16  does not.

         17                 On the federal level,

         18  environmentalists complain bitterly about expansion

         19  of logging on federal lands, yet expansion, vis- a-

         20  vis certified lumber, is the policy choice they have

         21  demanded.  The preponderance of certified forests

         22  are federal, state or corporately owned lands.  This

         23  administration and the forest agency, is damned if

         24  it does, and damned if it doesn't, because of the

         25  diametrically contradictory policies perused by
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          2  environmentalists.

          3                 To conclude, environmentalism is

          4  recycling and utilization of resources that

          5  otherwise would be discarded or land filled, like

          6  bottles and newspaper.  Environmentalists contend

          7  that the volumes of trees cut by the non- forest

          8  industry is either not significant or relevant to

          9  volumes produced by the forest industry. This is

         10  false.  In many states like New York, New Jersey, or

         11  Connecticut, the volumes of trees cut by the non-

         12  forest industry, may be equal to or be greater than

         13  those felled by the forest industry.  Supposition by

         14  FSC and environmentalists that the forest industry

         15  cuts down more trees is unproven.  Until local

         16  government agencies initiate an inventory system,

         17  there is no way to prove or disprove otherwise.

         18                 The Southern States Report released

         19  last November, 2001, by the US Forest Service,

         20  supports the probability that trees cut for

         21  urbanization exceeds those cut by the forest

         22  industry.

         23                 The report cited the following:

         24                 A)  Urbanization surpassed

         25  agriculture as the primary cause of loss of forest
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          2  land in 1984.

          3                 B)  Timberland owned by the forest

          4  industry declined between 1989- 1999.

          5                 C)  The forest industry and

          6  environmentalists, concur the most perilous threat

          7  to remaining forest land is suburban sprawl.

          8                 The environmentalist agenda is purely

          9  political, not environmental.  Opposition to

         10  recycling and maximum resource utilization

         11  demonstrates this fact unequivocally.  Until FSC

         12  recognizes and accepts tress cut by the non- forest

         13  industry for recycling, FSC must be rejected.  No

         14  consideration or aspect of their program should be

         15  adopted.  The forest industry plan, (SFI) respects

         16  trees, acknowledges the importance in the present

         17  and future of trees cut by the non- forest industry,

         18  supports and encourages recycling.

         19                 As for me, I believe in the age old

         20  adage, wasting not, want not.

         21

         22  Testimony of:

         23  Brigid Shea

         24  Manager, Government and Environmental Affairs

         25  International Wood Products Association
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          2

          3                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          4  offer comments on Intro. 108.  A local law to amend

          5  the administrative code of the City of New York, in

          6  relation to city contracts involving the purchase of

          7  wood products and materials.

          8                 My name is Brigid Shea.  I am Manager

          9  of Government and Environmental Affairs for the

         10  International Wood Products Association (IWPA).

         11  IWPA is an international trade organization

         12  representing overseas and domestic firms actively

         13  engaged in the international trade of wood and wood

         14  products from well- managed forests.

         15                 The International Wood Products

         16  Association (IWPA) and its membership share the deep

         17  concern of the sponsors of this bill for the careful

         18  management and conservation of the world's forests.

         19  The industry has a stake in helping to ensure a

         20  future for forests as well as a future for an

         21  ongoing and sustainable timber trade.

         22                 We are opposed to the enactment of

         23  Intro. 108 in its current form.

         24                 We believe using the city's

         25  procurement process to favor certain wood products
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          2  over others does nothing to promote sustainable

          3  forestry.  Such a policy would only serve to pick

          4  winners and losers, the latter being developing

          5  countries that are not yet able to meet the

          6  certification requirements mandated under this

          7  measure.  Adoption of Intro. 108 would be

          8  counterproductive rather than helpful towards

          9  achieving sustainable forest management in

         10  developing countries.

         11                 For developing countries, forestry

         12  issues are inseparable from the fundamental

         13  challenges of development and the environmental

         14  consequences of population growth, economic growth

         15  and industrialization.  Developing countries face a

         16  challenge greater than that of developed countries

         17  when trying to balance concern for environmental

         18  conditions with critical, short term economic needs.

         19                 Deforestation is primarily caused by

         20  the spread of agriculture.  The majority of land

         21  clearing is for farming and far exceeds the effect

         22  of cutting trees for timber and wood products.

         23  Deforestation is primarily caused by the spread of

         24  agriculture. Temperature majority of land clearing

         25  is for farming and far exceeds the effect of cutting
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          2  trees for timber and wood products. Deforestation is

          3  driven by population growth and poverty and is

          4  likely to continue until the forest is economically

          5  developed to provide a livelihood for the local

          6  populations.

          7                 Providing a constant and reliable

          8  market in the United States for imported wood

          9  products contributes to the conservation of forests.

         10    Encouraging high- end uses for tropical wood from

         11  managed forests is one of the best ways to protect

         12  and preserve tropical forests.  By specifying and

         13  using tropical woods, New York City would be

         14  financially supporting efforts directed at

         15  sustainable forestry, reduced impact logging and

         16  other good forest management practices.

         17                 Certification:

         18                 Certification is a lengthy,

         19  complicated and expensive process that generally

         20  requires annual forest audits and fees.  If

         21  developing countries cannot find markets for their

         22  wood products, they will not be able to afford

         23  putting into place the regulations, education

         24  resources and practices necessary to eventually

         25  apply for certification.
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          2                 The Food and Agriculture Organization

          3  of the United Nations has this to say about

          4  certification in annual publication, State of the

          5  World's Forests 2001," many important certification

          6  issues remain unresolved.  These include the lack of

          7  a clear link between certification and improved

          8  forest management where deforestation is greatest in

          9  developing countries: The continuing possibility

         10  that certification will intentionally or

         11  unintentionally act as a non- tariff barrier to

         12  trade and discriminate against those unable or

         13  unwilling to be certified."

         14                 Certifying tropical forests is

         15  equally challenging to the certifiers as indicated

         16  by the fact that most of the certified forests are

         17  in temperate and boreal regions.  More than half of

         18  the certified forests are located in Europe and

         19  almost 40 percent in North America.  The developing

         20  countries account for no more than 8 percent of the

         21  total.  As a whole, less than three percent of the

         22  world's forest area is presently certified.

         23  According to an analysis by the International

         24  Tropical Timber Organization, "it appears that the

         25  certification schemes have not been designed in a
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          2  way which could allow developing countries to make

          3  fast progress in this field.  As a market promotion

          4  tool, certification has been clearly more important

          5  for the developed than developing countries.

          6                 Support provided to tropical timber

          7  producers has not been sufficient to help them

          8  remove the prevailing hurdles in forest management,

          9  particularly in the natural forest."

         10                 Referencing an ITTO report one of the

         11  major barriers to certifying tropical forests, in

         12  addition to the financial costs are inflexible

         13  standards of performance.  Tropical forests, where

         14  efforts to implement sustained forestry management

         15  are recent and often far from definitive, are

         16  disadvantaged because certification standards tend

         17  to focus on the end results of sustainable forestry

         18  management practices.

         19                 Certification standards do not

         20  recognize successive steps to go through when moving

         21  toward sustained forestry management.

         22                 Certification is not able to address

         23  the root causes of deforestation.  It often fails to

         24  take into account other land use issues such as the

         25  development of agriculture, which can have a
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          2  significant impact on forests.

          3                 Certification standards are sometimes

          4  in conflict with national laws.  What may be

          5  considered illegal based on public law or

          6  unacceptable for voluntary certification standards,

          7  may still be part of customary law and traditional

          8  rights of local people living in and around forests.

          9                 These are some of the constraints

         10  that forest certification systems such as the Forest

         11  Stewardship Council must address before

         12  certification can work in developing countries.

         13                 In addition to the unintended

         14  consequences that a certification mandate would have

         15  on the producer countries and their forests, Intro.

         16  108 would also cause hardships for the City of New

         17  York.  Certified wood products may have as much as a

         18  30 percent price premium that would have to be

         19  passed on to the taxpayers.  Any certification

         20  requirement would add to the regulatory and

         21  compliance burden of state agencies, again, driving

         22  up the costs to taxpayers.  Finally, small retail

         23  lumber dealers would not be able to compete for

         24  state contracts because they cannot afford nor

         25  access certified wood products because supply is so

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            237

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  limited.

          3                 Progress in Sustainable Forestry:

          4                 Although certification is a challenge

          5  for developing countries, many of these countries

          6  are making progress. Substantial efforts have been

          7  made, especially over the last 10 years, to improve

          8  tropical forest management.  Individual tropical

          9  countries are forging ahead with national

         10  sustainable forest management practices and systems.

         11    For example:

         12                 The country of Ghana has established

         13  conservation status for each of its tree species and

         14  practices high quality forest management in its

         15  Forest Reserves.  It is working on its own national

         16  certification program, which is well advanced and

         17  has involved representatives of all stakeholders.

         18  Ghana is also working on a computerized system for

         19  log- tracking.

         20                 Malaysia manages its forest to meet

         21  internationally recognized standards and has adopted

         22  a forest policy that takes into account biological

         23  diversity input from local communities, and the

         24  enhancement of ecotourism.

         25                 African producer nations have formed
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          2  the Pan- African Certification Initiative.  This is

          3  a program in development led by the European

          4  Foundation for the Preservation of African Forest

          5  Resources and the African Timber Organization.  The

          6  Pan- African Certification Initiative is currently

          7  completing field testing of its standards and

          8  integrating the standards into the legislative and

          9  statutory framework of African Timber Organization

         10  member states.

         11                 These are but a few of the national

         12  and regional efforts that are underway in developing

         13  countries.  Although the forest management programs

         14  achieving these successes do not currently possess

         15  all of the bells and whistles of Forest Stewardship

         16  Council certification status, their efforts and

         17  products should not be dismissed from the

         18  marketplace.  Continuing to use tropical wood

         19  products will effectively encourage progressive

         20  forest management.  To not use tropical woods in

         21  effect will discourage further improvement.  In

         22  essence, if the goal is made unattainable,

         23  alternative uses of the land become more attractive,

         24    and our shared objective to curb deforestation

         25  will not be achieved.
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          2                 There are several international

          3  organizations dedicated to the sustainable usage of

          4  forests.  Two such organizations are the

          5  International Tropical Timber Organization (ITTO)

          6  and the Tropical Forest Foundation (TFF).

          7                 Most of the tropical forests are in

          8  developing countries.  These nations are members of

          9  the International Tropical Timber Organization

         10  (ITTO).  ITTO was founded under the auspices of the

         11  United Nations.  The ITTO provides scientific

         12  guidance and financial assistance toward achieving

         13  responsible forest management.  Its 56 members

         14  account for 95 percent of the world trade in

         15  tropical timber and 75 percent of the world's

         16  tropical forests.

         17                 ITTO has facilitated the funding in

         18  excess of U.S. $200 million for more than 500

         19  projects in many tropical countries related to the

         20  improvement and management of forests.  To support

         21  achievement of this goal, the organization has

         22  established Guidelines for Sustainable Management

         23  for Natural Tropical Forests and criteria to gauge

         24  progress.  ITTO contracted to have its progress

         25  evaluated in promoting good forest management
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          2  techniques in developing countries.  This evaluation

          3  found "that significant progress has been made in

          4  policy and legislative reform in almost all producer

          5  countries in all three continents."

          6                 The independent consultants who

          7  conducted the evaluation based their analysis

          8  criteria on issues such as whether a country had

          9  established a permanent forest estate, the amount of

         10  forest land dedicated to conservation purposes and

         11  the degree of involvement by local communities in

         12  forest policy formation.

         13                 In addition to supporting the good

         14  work being done by ITTO, IWPA's membership is

         15  actively engaged in improving the management and

         16  sustainability of these forests.  In 1990 IWPA

         17  founded (and continues to provide funding) to the

         18  Tropical Forest Foundation, which is comprised of

         19  representatives from the industry, scientific and

         20  environmental communities.

         21                 The Tropical Forest Foundation is

         22  dedicated to promoting sustainable forest management

         23  in through tropics through the use of reduced impact

         24  logging techniques.  The Foundation provides hands-

         25  on instruction on how to minimize ecological damage
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          2  by altering harvesting practices.  These guidelines

          3  address protection of the canopy, tree selection so

          4  that only mature trees are felled to ensure

          5  sustainability of the species, and additional

          6  measures addressing reforestation programs.

          7                 Last month, the Tropical Forest:

          8  Foundation brought members of the wood products,

          9  industry governments, scientists and NGOs together

         10  to identify issues that disrupt trade in a

         11  particular species called big- leaf mahogany, to

         12  find solutions that can be recommended to

         13  stakeholders in an effort to assure sustainable

         14  trade of the species.  The three day session in

         15  Brazil resulted in concrete recommendations to be

         16  submitted for consideration by appropriate

         17  government agencies, inter- governmental groups,

         18  industry trade groups and international forestry

         19  organizations. The recommendations and findings are

         20  relevant to all tropical species.  Some of the

         21  highlights include:

         22                 The principle of sustainability

         23  should guide all uses of mahogany and of the

         24  tropical forest.

         25                 People are part of the resource
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          2  use/conservation equation and part of the solution.

          3                 Realizing the economic value of

          4  tropical forests is consistent with conservation and

          5  sustaining biodiversity.

          6                 Sustaining trade activity is part of

          7  sustaining tropical forests.

          8                 Active management in the context of

          9  sustainability is compatible with conservation.

         10                 How mahogany is managed sets an

         11  important precedent for the management of tropical

         12  forests in Latin America; it might well dictate the

         13  future of these forests.

         14                 Bans on logging and trade activities

         15  are generally counterproductive in relation to a

         16  sustainable use of forests.

         17                 Scientific information provides the

         18  basis for effective management activities.

         19                 Alternative Approach:

         20                 There is an alternative to Intro.

         21  108, which would address the sustainability of wood

         22  used by the City of New York.

         23                 Require suppliers to provide a

         24  certificate of legal sourcing and proof of full

         25  compliance with all national, state and local laws
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          2  or regulations pertaining to logging and forest

          3  management.

          4                 Allow for the preferential use of

          5  wood originating from those countries adopting and

          6  implementing the criteria and indicators for the

          7  sustainable management of natural tropical forests.

          8                 The Superiority of Wood Products:

          9                 Finally, let me address the use of

         10  wood products in general.  The use of plastic

         11  instead of wood products is not an acceptable

         12  substitute for wood, either from an environmental or

         13  an engineering standpoint.  Life- cycle analysis

         14  shows a clear environmental advantage for wood

         15  products.  The energy required for the manufacture

         16  and processing of waste plastic into plastic lumber

         17  is about 3 to 4 times greater than that for all

         18  lumber.  Further, this energy comes from costly

         19  fossil fuels and electricity sources.

         20                 Wood is a superior product and it is

         21  a renewable resource.  Plastic products have a

         22  considerable lower co- efficient of friction (it is

         23  much more slippery), particularly when wet than

         24  wood.  Having greater thermal conductivity, plastic

         25  material will also "ice up" much more quickly when
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          2  cold and wet come together. This can become a safety

          3  problem for pedestrians, which may become a

          4  liability risk.  Also to be taken into consideration

          5  is the lack of long- term field testing of products

          6  other than wood decking with regard to flexing,

          7  warping, creeping and weight bearing capability over

          8  time.

          9                 Thank you for providing the

         10  opportunity to discuss our concerns with you.

         11  Please let me know how we can proceed to ensure our

         12  mutual goal of sustainable forest management can be

         13  addressed.

         14

         15  Testimony of:

         16  Francis S. Sheridan

         17

         18                 Dear Sir:

         19                 I am submitting this on my company

         20  letter head to verify my background of 30 years in

         21  the international wood trade. I was born and raised

         22  in the Bronx and have resided in Bayside, Queens for

         23  the last 20 years.  I have always lived or worked in

         24  this great city and I might add with great pride, up

         25  to now.
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          2                 Thus my concern about this

          3  legislation is both economic as a resident of the

          4  city and pragmatic as an expert on the subject of

          5  tropical forests.  I have appeared before the

          6  Council twice before and have suggested areas where

          7  the Council can gain non- biased info on the

          8  subject.  Councilman (now Speaker) Miller has not

          9  seen fit to follow- up on these suggestions to date.

         10  Thus one again I appear before the Council, although

         11  it would appear that it is a slamdunk on this bill.

         12                 Passing this legislation would be a

         13  tragedy for New York City economically and for the

         14  rainforest countries both socially and economically.

         15    It could even appear to be prejudicial against

         16  Africans.

         17                 1)  The City can expect to pay at

         18  least 20 percent more for any wood products covered

         19  by this legislation.  This has to come at the

         20  expense of something else in the budget.  This is

         21  not conjecture, but will be proven to be fact.

         22  Consider:

         23                 A)  The bill itself allows for a 15

         24  percent premium to be paid to the contractor or

         25  vendors.  The balance of any additional costs will
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          2  be borne by the supplier, if they have not hidden it

          3  somewhere else in the contract.  Some, if not the

          4  majority, of these suppliers are located right here

          5  in the City and thus another New Yorker foots the

          6  bill.

          7                 B)  The work load on the departments

          8  letting the contracts will increase as they will

          9  have to examine the documentation submitted by the

         10  contractor to make sure is in compliance with Intro.

         11  108.  It may double in some cases where bids are

         12  required for both certified and non- certified in

         13  order to verify a 15 percent differential.  This

         14  will add to the expense of the product or slow down

         15  the process and create shortages in the system.

         16                 C)  The bill calls for monitoring by

         17  the Comptroller's Office of the various departments

         18  and agencies letting these contract to compliance.

         19  What will this cost the taxpayers?  You do not know!

         20    Of course you do not and neither will the

         21  taxpayers, but it will cost them plenty.  If you do

         22  not believe me, ask the Comptroller.

         23                 D)  This bill is written in such a

         24  convoluted and contradictory way that it is prime

         25  target for litigation by contractors because it is
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          2  prejudicial.  Actually it is a litigators ideal.

          3  How much is this going to cost the City?

          4                 2.  The legislation is premature and

          5  will only confuse the issue, which is being taken on

          6  at the Federal level presently.  To that end I have

          7  been requested to meet with a Deputy Secretary of

          8  State and the Committee on Environmental Quality, as

          9  well as the USTR and the Commerce Department.  The

         10  purpose of these meetings is to discuss certain

         11  aspects of the very issue concerned herein.

         12                 3.  No African nation will be able to

         13  comply with this legislation, since it calls for a

         14  Certification System, which is not operational in

         15  Africa.  This places the burden most heavily on

         16  those least able to compete, namely, the Black

         17  nations of the world community.  New York City may

         18  as well hang out a sign, "African nations need not

         19  apply."  One does not have to be an international

         20  expert to predict the result when you shut out these

         21  African nations from a market they desperately need

         22  to generate hard currency to promote development and

         23  economic growth and opportunity.

         24                 4.  Many qualified and respected

         25  international agencies have recognized and are

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            248

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  calling for the acceptance of different

          3  certification systems as a necessity.  These

          4  agencies include, but are not limited to, The World

          5  Bank, The United Nation (UN), the Food and

          6  Agriculture Organization (FAO), the International

          7  Tropical Timber Organization (ITTO), and USAID, as

          8  well.  Yet this legislation indicates requirements

          9  that are only met by one particular certification

         10  scheme and I use the word scheme purposely (and

         11  accurately).  The advocates of that system have used

         12  coercion with major retailers to get compliance.

         13  That system could not even come close to a UL or

         14  Consumer Union endorsement as regards integrity.

         15                 5.  Lastly and most important, this

         16  legislation will not save one acre of tropical

         17  forest.  In fact, it may very well do the opposite

         18  by convincing producing countries to convert their

         19  existing forests permanently to coffee, banana, palm

         20  oil or other sorely needed cash crops to generate

         21  foreign exchange.  These conversions are permanent

         22  whereas selective harvesting of timber provides a

         23  sustainable environment and much more biodiversity.

         24                 New York City is the center of the

         25  world now more than ever and as such will be an
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          2  example to the rest of the country and the world.

          3  Passing this legislation for political gain would

          4  exact a large price from its taxpayers and an even

          5  larger price from developing nations, especially the

          6  African ones.  I really believe it would have an

          7  adverse impact on New York City residents

          8  immediately and an even greater permanent one on the

          9  tropical countries and their people.  Ego must be

         10  secondary to rationality in this situation or we

         11  will not have these forests to draw from in the

         12  future either economically or aesthetically.  But

         13  just as important is the human factor right here in

         14  our city.  Make sure we have met the needs of those

         15  who showed what they were worth on September 11,

         16  2001 and every day as well as the children in our

         17  schools, the former protect our present and the

         18  latter protect our future.  When these needs have

         19  been met fully, then and only then can you consider

         20  addressing problems throughout this planet, and

         21  hopefully, in a more constructive manner than Intro.

         22  108 as written.

         23                 I am sure the intent is honorable,

         24  but the actuality is predisposed to disaster

         25  directly to New Yorkers and definitely to those it
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          2  purports to help.  Make no mistake, if enacted the

          3  bill be a big cost to New Yorkers and the people in

          4  tropical countries. Unfortunately, it will be after

          5  the fact, and I hope that Speaker Miller and his

          6  sponsors of this bill will stand ready to pick up

          7  the tab.  I have the greatest respect for this body

          8  and for Speaker Miller, but that invoice will have

          9  to be paid as sure as I am sitting here.  Let not

         10  ego replace common sense at this point in time.

         11                 Thank you and I remain at your

         12  service and that of the greatest city in the world.

         13                 Francis S. Sheridan.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 2:45 p.m.)

         15
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 13th day of June 2002.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH

         25
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12
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         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH
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